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1               JUDGE SAINSOT:  By the authority

2        vested in me by the Illinois Commerce

3        Commission, I now call Docket Number 12-0321.

4                   This is the matter of the

5        Commonwealth Edison company, and it is an

6        annual formula rate of pay and revenue

7        requirement reconciliation, authorized by

8        Section 16-108.5 of the Public Utilities Act.

9        Will the parties identify themselves for the

10        record, please?

11               MR. BURNET:  On behalf of Commonwealth

12        Edison Company Richard Burnet; 10 South

13        Dearborn, Suite 4900, Chicago 60603,

14        (312) 394-3623.

15               MR. RIPPIE:  Also on behalf of

16        Commonwealth Edison Company, Glenn Rippie and

17        John Ratnaswamy of Rooney, Rippie, and

18        Ratnaswamy, LLP; 350 West Hubbard, Suite 600,

19        Chicago 60654, (312) 447-2800.

20               MR. SAGONE:  On behalf of the staff

21        witnesses of the Illinois Commerce

22        Commission, John Sagone, and Jessica Cardoni
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1        and John Feeley; 160 North LaSalle Street,

2        Suite C-800, Chicago, Illinois 60601.

3               MS. SATTER:  Appearing on behalf of

4        the People of the State of Illinois,

5        Susan L. Satter and Karen L. Lusson; 100 West

6        Randolph Street, Chicago, Illinois 60610.

7               MS. SODERING:  Appearing on behalf of

8        the Citizens Utility Board, Julie Sodering;

9        309 West Washington, Suite 800, Chicago,

10        Illinois 60606.

11               MR. COFFMAN:  Appearing on behalf of

12        AARP, John B. Coffman; 871 Tuxedo Boulevard,

13        St. Louis, Missouri 63119.

14               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any further

15        appearances?

16                   Before we get started, I just want

17        to remind you all as I mentioned yesterday,

18        the only way you incorporate testimony from

19        other proceedings is to move for

20        administrative notice and to comply with the

21        rule regarding administrative notice.  So if

22        any incorporated referred to or otherwise
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1        summoned testimony gets

2        inadvertently -- doesn't get stricken

3        inadvertently, we will not consider it.

4                   So let's begin.

5                   (Witness sworn.)

6 WHEREUPON:

7                   ROSS C. HEMPHILL

8 called as a witness herein, having been first duly

9 sworn, deposeth and saith as follows:

10                 E X A M I N A T I O N

11 BY MR. RIPPIE:

12        Q.     Good afternoon.  Could you please

13 state and spell your full name for the court

14 reporter?

15        A.     It's Ross C. Hemphill.  That's

16 Ross -- Ross is R-o-s-s, middle initial C, and

17 Hemphill is H-e-m-p-h-i-l-l.

18        Q.     And Dr. Hemphill, have you prepared or

19 caused to be prepared under your direction or

20 control testimony for submission to the Illinois

21 Commerce Commission in this docket?

22        A.     Yes.
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1        Q.     I'll direct your attention to the

2 document that's been previously marked and filed on

3 the E-Docket as ComEd Exhibit 1.0 revised.  Is that

4 your pre-filed direct testimony for submission in

5 this docket?

6        A.     Yes, it is.

7        Q.     Do you have any additions or

8 corrections to make to ComEd Exhibit 1.0 revised?

9        A.     I do not.

10        Q.     If I were to ask you these same

11 questions that appear on Exhibit 1.0 revised today,

12 would you give me the same answers?

13        A.     Yes, I would.

14        Q.     Is the document previously filed ComEd

15 Exhibit 1.1 a true and correct copy of the

16 curriculum vitae that's referred to in Exhibit 1.0

17 revised?

18        A.     Yes, it is.

19        Q.     I direct your attention to the

20 document that's been previously designated ComEd

21 Exhibit 11.0, and I'd ask you is that the narrative

22 rebuttal testimony that's been pre-filed in this
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1 docket on your behalf?

2        A.     Yes, it is.

3        Q.     Do you have any additions or

4 corrections that you wish to make to ComEd

5 Exhibit 11.0?

6        A.     No, I don't.

7        Q.     If I were to ask you the same

8 questions as they appear on ComEd Exhibit 11.0

9 today, would your answers be the same?

10        A.     Yes, they would.

11        Q.     I now direct your attention to the

12 document that's been marked ComEd Exhibit 18.0.  Is

13 ComEd Exhibit 18.0 your narrative surrebuttal

14 testimony previously filed on E-Docket?

15        A.     Yes, it is.

16        Q.     Do you have any additions or

17 corrections you wish to make to ComEd Exhibit 18.0?

18        A.     Yeah.  I just have one correction

19 reading through it again.  If you go to Line l81,

20 which is on Page 9 of 10, just to make the sentence

21 read a little more clearer, I would strike the word

22 required, e-d.
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1               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Are we going to get

2        copies of his testimony?

3               MR. RIPPIE:  Yes.  We have them, your

4        Honor.  I was going to walk them up as soon

5        as we were done.

6               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Do you want us to make

7        the correction?  That's the reason I ask.

8               MR. RIPPIE:  That correction is noted

9        after the photocopy was made, so I was

10        actually going to make it in just a second

11        and deliver the four copies to your Honor.

12               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Okay.  Sure.  I just

13        wanted to make sure.

14 BY MR. RIPPIE:

15        Q.     With the exception of that correction,

16 that deletion on page -- which page was that?

17        A.     Page 9.

18        Q.     With the excepted of that deletion on

19 Page 9, if I were to ask you the same questions as

20 they appear on ComEd Exhibit 18.0, would you give

21 the same answers today?

22        A.     Yes.
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1        Q.     Thank you very much, Dr. Hemphill.

2               MR. RIPPIE:  I have no more direct

3        questions for the witness, and I would offer

4        into evidence, subject to cross-examination

5        of course, ComEd Exhibit 1.0 revised, ComEd

6        Exhibit 1.1, ComEd Exhibit 11.0, and ComEd

7        Exhibit 18.0 with that correction that will

8        be made on the written copy.

9               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any objection?

10                   Hearing none, and subject to our

11        receiving them -- but I understand that

12        you're fixing up that little -- what would

13        you call it, a typo or whatever -- those

14        exhibits are entered into evidence.  And just

15        so we're clear, it's ComEd Exhibit 1.0, 1.1,

16        11.0 and 18.0.

17                   Mr. Coffman, do you have questions

18        for Mr. Hemphill?

19               MR. COFFMAN:  Not at this time.  May I

20        reserve the right to ask questions after

21        others have?

22               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Oh, okay.  Sure.
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1               MR. COFFMAN:  They may be covered by

2        others.

3               JUDGE SAINSOT:  AG?

4 BY MS. SATTER:

5        Q.     Good afternoon, Mr. Hemphill.  Susan

6 Satter for the People of the State of Illinois.

7                   You said in surrebuttal testimony

8 that it's impossible to provide the costs that were

9 incurred to meet the infrastructure investment

10 requirements of the EIMA statute in the formula

11 rates.  Is that right?  That's on Page 5 of your

12 surrebuttal.

13               JUDGE SAINSOT:  That's 18.0?

14               MS. SATTER:  Yes.

15               THE WITNESS:  Just so I can read it,

16        could you tell me which line you're reading

17        from?

18               MS. SATTER:  If you look at the

19        question that starts on Line 90, and the

20        answer that ends at Line l01, if you could

21        review that.  And I did summarize it in my

22        question.
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1               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Could you repeat the

2        question just for our benefit?

3               MS. SATTER:  I will.  I thought I'd

4        let him finish reading it.

5               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Sure.

6 BY MS. SATTER:

7        Q.     So is it your position that it is

8 impossible to provide the costs that were incurred

9 to meet specific infrastructure investment

10 requirements of the EIMA law in the formula rate

11 filings?

12               MR. RIPPIE:  To the extent that was

13        intended to be your own question, I obviously

14        have no problem with it.  But that doesn't

15        accurately summarize the question he was

16        asked at that point.  So to that extent, I

17        object.

18               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Just rephrase.

19 BY MS. SATTER

20        Q.     My question is:  Is it his position

21 that it's impossible to provide the costs that were

22 incurred to meet the specific infrastructure
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1 investment requirements of the EIMA in the formula

2 rate filings.

3        A.     I wouldn't use the word impossible.

4 And my answer is we cannot -- it's impracticable.

5        Q.     Let me just refer you to Line 96.

6 Don't you say it is simply impossible to provide?

7        A.     I stand corrected.

8        Q.     Okay.  So now you're saying it's not

9 impossible, but it's impractical?

10        A.     That's correct.

11        Q.     Is it your position that ComEd cannot

12 separately identify the EIMA investment in this

13 formula rate filing?

14               MR. RIPPIE:  Again, I object to the

15        form.  Do you mean all EIMA investments, or

16        the particular kind that are being talked

17        about in this part of his testimony?

18               MS. SATTER:  I'm referring to his

19        testimony.  Does the witness understand the

20        question?

21               THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  Again, if I could

22        just state it in my own words and we can go
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1        around again on this just to make it clear.

2                   It's probably feasible, or to

3        correct my own testimony, possible to

4        actually spend the time to try to identify

5        item by item exactly what was and was not

6        EIMA.  But given the nature of the

7        investment, it's not correct.

8 BY MS. SATTER:

9        Q.     Does ComEd track that information

10 internally?

11        A.     It does not.

12        Q.     It does not.  Okay.  Now, in your

13 rebuttal testimony at Page 10, you testified that

14 ComEd is subject to certain reporting requirements

15 related to the EIMA, and then you quote

16 Section 16-108.5B, correct?

17        A.     That's correct.

18        Q.     Now, is it true that ComEd filed a

19 Commonwealth Edison Company infrastructure

20 investment plan with the Commission on -- dated

21 January 6th, 2012?

22        A.     That's correct.
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1        Q.     And were you involved in the

2 preparation of that document?

3        A.     I reviewed it.

4        Q.     So you're familiar with the

5 January 6th, 2012, infrastructure investment plan?

6        A.     Generally, yes.

7        Q.     If I could show you a copy.  I'm

8 showing you a copy of the Commonwealth Edison

9 Company's infrastructure investment plan dated

10 January 6th, 2012.

11               MS. SATTER:  And we will ask that that

12        be marked as AG Cross Exhibit 1.

13               JUDGE SAINSOT:  For the record, what

14        is that?

15               MS. SATTER:  It's the commonwealth

16        company's infrastructure investment plan

17        filed with the Commission.  It's available on

18        the Commission's website.  I can give you the

19        URL if that's helpful.  But it's dated

20        January 6th, 2012, and you should have a

21        copy.

22               JUDGE SAINSOT:  We do, for the record.
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1               MS. SATTER:  Excuse me.

2               JUDGE SAINSOT:  We do, for the record.

3               MR. RIPPIE:  Before you proceed, I'm

4        trying to get my electronic copy here.

5               MS. SATTER:  Do you need the URL?

6               MR. RIPPIE:  No, I've got one

7        somewhere.  If you don't have an extra one in

8        paper, I just need a minute to find it back

9        in that file.  I can find it, I just need a

10        moment.

11               MS. SATTER:  For the record, the

12        report itself is 99 pages, and Attachment 2

13        is 68 pages.

14               MR. RIPPIE:  I've found the

15        attachment.  Just give me a minute.  There it

16        is.

17               MS. SATTER:  And for the record, I

18        have provided you with a 99-page report and

19        Attachment 2, which is the 68-page report.

20               MR. RIPPIE:  So Attachment 1, that

21        plan is omitted?

22               MS. SATTER:  Correct.
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1 BY MS. SATTER:

2        Q.     Now, Mr. Hemphill, does this look like

3 the report that we referred to a few minutes ago?

4        A.     Yes.

5        Q.     And I'd like to direct your attention

6 to just the table of contents of the report itself,

7 the Commonwealth Edison Company's infrastructure

8 investment plan.  Now, does that show several

9 sections, particularly Sections 1A through 1F, with

10 subsections underneath each section?

11        A.     Yes.

12        Q.     And there's also a Section 2,

13 Sections 2A to 2D; is that right, on Page 3 of 99?

14        A.     Yes.

15        Q.     And is it correct that the Section 2

16 information has to do with smart grid related

17 investments?

18        A.     Yes.

19        Q.     So for each section, Section 1A and

20 1B, is there a budget under Subsection 3 of each of

21 these sections?

22        A.     Yes.
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1        Q.     And if you can turn to Page 20 of 99.

2        A.     So it starts with the section program

3 budget?

4        Q.     Yes.  It's Section 1A(3).

5        A.     Yes.

6        Q.     And is it correct that that page says

7 ComEd estimates the program costs to the capital

8 investments of $586 million plus associated expenses

9 over the program period?

10        A.     Yes.

11        Q.     And is it correct that that

12 $586 million plus associated expenses is the

13 estimated capital budget for the underground

14 residential -- I believe its distribution injection

15 and replacement program?

16               MR. RIPPIE:  If the witness knows, he

17        can answer, but this is way beyond the scope

18        of his testimony.  There are witnesses that

19        testified to the capital, and he's not it.

20        But if he knows the answer...

21               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Overruled.  I'm sorry.

22        Her first question had to do
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1        with -- Mr. Hemphill testified that he

2        essentially -- as I see it, that ComEd was

3        not required to produce evidence of what it's

4        spent EIMA money on.  Now she's asking him

5        essentially if there is some evidence,

6        although --

7               MR. RIPPIE:  I understand the basis.

8        Thank you, Judge.

9               THE WITNESS:  That's what the numbers

10        show me here.

11 BY MS. SATTER:

12        Q.     And is it also correct that on this

13 Page 20, there's an estimated budget -- capital

14 budget for four years, 2012 through 2017, inclusive?

15        A.     Yes.

16        Q.     And would you agree with me that for

17 each section, Sections 1A through 1F, there is a

18 budget page that provides information showing the

19 estimated budget for that particular type -- for the

20 particular type of investment that's discussed in

21 that section?

22        A.     Yes.
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1        Q.     And is that also true for Section 2

2 having to do with the smart good investments?  I

3 should say Sections 2, because I believe there are

4 Sections 2A through 2C.

5        A.     Yes, for each section there is a

6 budget.

7        Q.     So when Commonwealth Edison submitted

8 this report, it was able to identify the budget

9 associated with each of the categories included in

10 the report?

11        A.     As far as EIMA spending, that's

12 correct.

13        Q.     Now, if you would turn to Attachment 2

14 of the report.  Does the attachment say:

15 Commonwealth Edison Company's Infrastructure

16 Investment Plan Attachment to 2012 Investment Plan,

17 January 6th, 2012?

18        A.     Yes.

19        Q.     And if you look at the table of

20 contents again, would you agree with me that it

21 mirrors the table of contents of the original plan?

22 In other words, there's Sections 1A through 1F, and
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1 then Sections 2A through 2D?

2        A.     Yes.

3        Q.     And would you also agree with me that

4 there is a Section 3 -- a Subsection 3 in each

5 section for a program budget?

6        A.     Are you asking if each section has a

7 subsection that's a program budget?

8        Q.     Yes.

9        A.     That's correct.

10        Q.     And if you'd go to Page 15 of 68?

11        A.     1-5?

12        Q.     Yes.

13        A.     I'm there.

14        Q.     Does that page, that section, which is

15 1A(3), the 2012 program budget, include an estimated

16 2012 program cost to be capital investments of

17 $59 million plus associated expenses?

18        A.     That's what the number shows, yes.

19        Q.     And in fact, the budget includes

20 amounts for each month of the year?

21        A.     Yes.

22        Q.     And is that -- is the same analysis
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1 presented for each section of investment that's

2 described in the attachment?

3        A.     Yes.

4        Q.     Do you know whether Commonwealth

5 Edison tracks this budget that's shown in the

6 Attachment 2 for 2012 to the actual to spend as it

7 makes its investments identified in the report?

8        A.     To the best of my understanding -- I'm

9 not the expert on this, but to the best of my

10 understanding, this gets -- a disconnect I think

11 exists between parties with ComEd as to how it

12 establishes.

13                   There is in the EIMA an obligation

14 to spend so much.  Whether or not that is spent is

15 based on a baseline of three years, as established

16 in the statute.  When we get to the annual filings,

17 we're going to have a capital projection in each

18 year, and within those annual filings there's where

19 we're not going to be able to reasonably tie

20 individual expenditures to whether or not they're

21 EIMA or not.

22                   That's why I believe it was
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1 simplified in the statute as having a baseline that

2 you would look at for a period of years as to

3 whether or not that expenditure is above that

4 baseline as specified in the statute.

5        Q.     So does that mean that Commonwealth

6 Edison will not refer back to these budgets in

7 making its investment year over year?

8        A.     I believe -- again, I'm not the expert

9 on this, but my understanding is they'll refer back,

10 as these are guidelines.  So the individual tying of

11 expenditures to the type of asset to whether it's

12 EIMA or not, that type of linkage isn't

13 really -- they're not reasonably able to do that.

14        Q.     Who is the expert?  You said you're

15 not the expert on this.  Who would that be?

16        A.     It would be Michelle Blaise, witness

17 place.

18        Q.     Would you expect next year to file a

19 2013 investment plan?

20        A.     Yes.  Updates are filed every year.

21        Q.     And there would be a budget in that as

22 well?
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1        A.     Yes.

2        Q.     Again, in your surrebuttal, you say

3 that -- let me give you the line.  Line 201, you

4 say:  ComEd is required to demonstrate prudence and

5 reasonableness on all capital additions, regardless

6 of whether they are EIMA related or not.

7                   Do you know whether the Commission

8 reviews the prudence and reasonableness of EIMA

9 investments as part of the annual infrastructure

10 report that you referred to in your rebuttal

11 testimony?

12        A.     No.  A review of that doesn't take

13 place as part of the infrastructure investment plan

14 filing.  That's done on an annual basis through the

15 formula update process.

16               MS. SATTER:  I would like to move for

17        the admission of GA Cross Exhibit 1, and I

18        have no further questions.

19               MR. RIPPIE:  No objection.

20               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Hearing no objection,

21        AG Cross Exhibit 1 is entered into evidence.

22        Just so it's clear, it is Commonwealth Edison
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1        Company's infrastructure investment plan

2        dated January 6th, 2012, and I believe it has

3        the Attachment B, but not A.  Is that right?

4               MS. SATTER:  Two, but not one.

5               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Two but not one.

6        Okay.  Mr. Coffman, do you need a moment?

7               MS. SATTER:  I am finished.

8               JUDGE SAINSOT:  You looked finished.

9               MS. SATTER:  I thought I said I was

10        finished.  I'm sorry.  Thank you.

11               MR. COFFMAN:  Just a couple questions.

12          D I R E C T  E X A M I N A T I O N

13 BY MR. COFFMAN:

14        Q.     Good afternoon.

15        A.     Good afternoon.

16        Q.     You would agree that ComEd voluntarily

17 elected and committed to use the provisions of the

18 EIMA, and thus chose the new regulatory model in

19 lieu of traditional rate-making?

20        A.     Yes.

21        Q.     And when Commonwealth Edison made that

22 decision, did it do a cost benefit analysis
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1 comparing the two regulatory methods projecting

2 costs out over a period as opposed to what it might

3 spend on traditional rate-making?

4        A.     Just to clarify the question, did you

5 compare the cost of traditional rate-making with the

6 costs that would be incurred under the formula rate

7 under EIMA?  Is that the question?

8        Q.     Let me ask it this way:  Did

9 Commonwealth Edison consider the projected financial

10 implications to the utility of each path that it

11 might take when choosing to take advantage of the

12 new law and voluntarily elect to adopt its

13 commitments and its benefits or stay with a

14 traditional rate-making system?  In making that

15 decision, did it project out the financial impact

16 that each might have on the company and which would

17 be more beneficial?

18        A.     Yeah.  We looked at what would be more

19 beneficial to customers.  And there is also a

20 financial projection that was made.  That's why I

21 believe the decision to elect, it was a win-win

22 situation in terms of a good for the customers and
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1 mutually beneficial for the stockholders.

2        Q.     And did Commonwealth Edison quantify

3 that projected benefit of taking advantages of the

4 new law?

5        A.     There was both an estimate made in

6 terms of the benefits to customers, which I was

7 aware of and involved with, and I believe there are

8 also financial projections which people much more

9 intelligent than me did.

10        Q.     And were those calculations thorough

11 enough to show the incremental cost investment

12 differences between what would be required under the

13 law and what would otherwise be done?

14        A.     Well, as specified in the law, just

15 what the investment difference is.  An incremental

16 investment is laid out in as far as how much of an

17 additional investment would be made over a

18 three-year average period that was specified.

19        Q.     But Commonwealth Edison did not look

20 at the type of data that the staff is required -- or

21 requested in this particular docket when it made

22 that decision?
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1        A.     What --

2        Q.     Did you look at the costs that were

3 projected to be incurred in compliance with meeting

4 the new infrastructure investment requirements in

5 relation to the specific information the staff is

6 requesting and is at issue in this case?

7        A.     I just want to be clear.  Which

8 specific information are you referring to?

9        Q.     Well, the information that you have

10 testified would be impracticable to provide the

11 Commission.

12        A.     No, we are not prepared to do that

13 type of a linkage on a year-by-year basis in terms

14 of breaking down what the capital projections are by

15 whether it's EIMA or not, which would be having a

16 tracking to individual investments themselves,

17 individual investments themselves.

18        Q.     Well, was a projection of those costs

19 calculated and considered by Commonwealth Edison

20 before it chose to elect this EIMA regulatory

21 scheme?

22        A.     Yeah, in total.  As specified in the
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1 statute, there's a total incremental investment by

2 two types.

3        Q.     And is your testimony here that it

4 would simply be impracticable to break that down

5 year by year?  You can project it in total, but not

6 provide it year by year?

7        A.     My testimony is that on a year-by-year

8 basis, it's impracticable to take individual

9 investments and basically paint them as to whether

10 they are EIMA or not.  Each year, there's certain

11 amounts of investments that are made.  Some of them

12 are to follow the guidelines that are provided in

13 the infrastructure investment plan in terms of

14 meeting over the tenure period that are required to

15 make the incremental investment.

16               MR. COFFMAN:  That's all I have.

17        Thank you.

18               MR. RIPPIE:  Just a handful of

19        questions.  We don't need any extra

20        consultation time.

21

22
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1       R E D I R E C T   E X A M I N A T I O N

2 BY MR. RIPPIE:

3        Q.     Dr. Hemphill, let me direct your

4 attention to AG Cross Exhibit Number 1 and refer you

5 to Page 599, the middle Paragraph 16-108.5B.  I'm

6 going to ask you whether that accurately describes,

7 as you understand it, the method by which the EIMA

8 required investments are calculated in the

9 aggregate?

10        A.     Yes.  Your Honors, if I could just

11 read it out loud?

12               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Sure.  What page are

13        we on here?

14               MR. RIPPIE:  Page 5, your Honor.  It's

15        the middle paragraph that begins:  As

16        required by.

17               JUDGE SAINSOT:  And this is the

18        rebuttal I take it, not the surrebuttal?

19               MR. RIPPIE:  No, your Honor.  That

20        would be the AG's Cross exhibit, AG

21        Exhibit 1.0.  Not the attachment, but the

22        document itself.
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1               THE WITNESS:  As required by Section

2        16-108.5B, the total estimated $2.6 billion

3        of cumulative capital investment under this

4        plan will be incremental to comments total

5        annual capital investment program

6        Section 16.108.5B; that is, over the term of

7        the plan, ComEd will invest an estimated

8        cumulative total of $2.6 billion more capital

9        than the capital investment plan that

10        invested at an annual rate defined by ComEd's

11        average capital spend for calendar years

12        2008, 2009, and 2010 as reported in ComEd's

13        applicable Federal Energy Regulatory

14        Commission for Form 1.

15               MR. RIPPIE:  I'm happy to have him

16        read the rest, but that's the relevant

17        portion.

18 BY MR. RIPPIE:

19        Q.     Dr. Hemphill, Ms. Satter asked you a

20 variety of questions about the budgets by category

21 identified in the tables of contents of Exhibit 1.0

22 and the portion of Exhibit 1.0 that is Attachment 2
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1 of the report.  Do you recall those questions?

2        A.     I do.

3        Q.     Are those budgets budgets that, in the

4 aggregate, show incremental investments as required

5 by this provision of Section 16-108.5B?

6        A.     Yes.

7        Q.     Now, knowing that, does that help you

8 if you were to go out in the field and find a place

9 where cable is being, for example, injected and

10 replaced, determine whether that particular cable

11 replacement project was an EIMA funded incremental

12 cable replacement project or a baseline cable

13 replacement project?

14        A.     No, it doesn't.  I was trying to

15 elucidate earlier that the individual projects or

16 the investments related to those projects out in the

17 field are not painted whether they're incremental or

18 the EIMA or not.

19        Q.     Is there any reason why you'd need to

20 know that in order to determine that ComEd has

21 complied with the incremental investment

22 requirements of the EIMA?
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1        A.     No.

2               MR. RIPPIE:  Thank you.  That's all I

3        have.

4               MS. SATTER:  I have nothing.

5               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Okay.  You can step

6        down, Mr. Hemphill.  Thank you.

7               MR. RIPPIE:  Your Honor, while we're

8        exchanging witnesses, if I could ask a brief

9        administrative question.

10               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Sure.

11               MR. RIPPIE:  Your Honor has granted

12        the motion to substitute witness Donovan for

13        witness Novy yesterday without objection.

14        Witness Novy also submitted an affidavit as

15        part of one of the compliance filings that we

16        will be moving into evidence.  Witness

17        Donovan is prepared to execute an identical

18        affidavit, other than his name.

19               JUDGE SAINSOT:  What type of filings

20        were these?

21               MR. RIPPIE:  Those were the two

22        compliance filings that your Honor set to be
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1        due in June to 11-0721 by the Commission's

2        order; for example, the materials related to

3        incentive compensation, materials related to

4        the calculations, et cetera.

5                   Of one of those was an affidavit

6        by Mr. Novy.  Mr. Donovan is prepared to

7        either, whichever your Honors would prefer,

8        execute an affidavit saying what Ms. Novy

9        said was correct, or simply to submit a

10        substitute affidavit in his own name that

11        contains the identical subject.

12               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Does he have personal

13        knowledge?

14               MR. RIPPIE:  He is, in fact, the vice

15        president in charge of that area.  So yes, he

16        does.

17               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Okay.  I guess that's

18        fine.

19               MR. RIPPIE:  Then we'll submit the

20        substitute affidavit.  Thank you.

21               JUDGE SAINSOT:  This is Mr. Hengtgen.

22        Let's swear the witness in.
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1                   (Witness sworn.)

2 WHEREUPON:

3                     JOHN HENGTGEN

4 called as a witness herein, having been first duly

5 sworn, deposeth and saith as follows:

6                 E X A M I N A T I O N

7 BY MR. RIPPIE:

8        Q.     Good afternoon, Mr. Hengtgen.  Could

9 you please state and spell your name?

10        A.     John Hengtgen, H-e-n-g-t-g-e-n.

11        Q.     Could you please state your business

12 address?

13        A.     1708 Freedom Court, Mount Prospect,

14 Illinois 60056.

15        Q.     And whom are you employed or in what

16 capacity do you work?

17        A.     I'm a consultant and I'm providing

18 service to Commonwealth Edison in this case.

19        Q.     Mr. Hengtgen, did you prepare or cause

20 to be prepared under your direct supervision and

21 control direct testimony consisting of the following

22 exhibit numbers, being 5.0, and the attachments
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1 being 5.1, 5.2, and 5.3 for submission in this

2 docket?

3        A.     Yes, I did.

4        Q.     And if I were to ask you the questions

5 that appear in that direct testimony, would your

6 answers be the same today, and would that be true

7 and correct?

8        A.     Yes.

9        Q.     Mr. Hengtgen, did you also prepare for

10 purposes of submission in this docket rebuttal

11 testimony consisting of a narrative marked as

12 Exhibit 16.0 with five attachments marked as numbers

13 16.1, 16.2, 16.3, 16.4, and 16.5?

14        A.     Yes.

15        Q.     And if I were to ask you the questions

16 that appear in that rebuttal testimony, would your

17 answers be the same today and would they be true and

18 correct?

19        A.     Yes.

20        Q.     Finally, Mr. Hengtgen, did you prepare

21 or cause to prepare under your direct supervision

22 and control for submission in this docket
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1 surrebuttal testimony consisting of a narrative with

2 no attachments numbered as Exhibit Number 21.0?

3        A.     Yes.

4        Q.     And if I were to ask you the questions

5 that appear in your surrebuttal testimony, would

6 your answers be the same today and would they be

7 true and correct?

8        A.     Yes.

9               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Mr. Hengtgen, what is

10        this ComEd Exhibit 5.3?

11               THE WITNESS:  I believe that is a copy

12        of my direct testimony that was submitted in

13        docket 11-0721.

14               JUDGE SAINSOT:  So you're going to do

15        what with this?

16               MR. RATNASWAMY:  I'm going to offer

17        it.  I was going to make a statement before I

18        offered his testimony about grounds for

19        admission.

20               JUDGE SAINSOT:  You can do that, but

21        5.3 is not admitted yet.  5.0, 5.1,

22        5.2 -- anything after 5.3 -- 5.0, 5.1, 5.2,
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1        16.0, 16.1, and 16 -- oh, you didn't move?

2               MR. RATNASWAMY:  No, I didn't move.

3               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Okay.  So I jumped the

4        gun a little bit.  Go ahead.

5               MR. RATNASWAMY:  In light of your

6        Honor's remarks and the hearsay I've heard

7        about your Honor's previous remarks, because

8        I wasn't here, I want to address two of the

9        attachments and one answer.

10                   More specifically, with respect to

11        Mr. Hengtgen's direct testimony, consistent

12        with the position of Commonwealth Edison

13        Company in the 2011 formula case and the

14        Commission's ultimate order which approved

15        ComEd's position that it should use the same

16        study, Mr. Hengtgen attached his direct

17        testimony from the previous case to explain

18        how the lead/lag study was prepared.

19                   So it's an existing document that

20        explains how the lead/lag study was prepared.

21        It's his own testimony.  Whether or not it

22        were an exhibit in a prior case, it would be
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1        admissible simply with an explanation of how

2        he prepared his study.

3               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Is this really

4        controverted by anybody?

5               MR. RATNASWAMY:  No, but we didn't

6        know that, of course, when we filed the

7        record.

8                   Your Honor, if I could make one

9        more claim?

10               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Sure.

11               MR. RATNASWAMY:  In the certain issues

12        relating to the preparation of the cash

13        working capital study were reserved for

14        appeal by ComEd's application for rehearing.

15        Those issues may be appealed out of the 11

16        case, and we do think it is important to have

17        in the record of the 12 case, therefore

18        evidence showing how this study was prepared.

19               JUDGE SAINSOT:  For the appeal of the

20        different case?

21               MR. RATNASWAMY:  Depending on what the

22        outcome of the case is, yes.  It would be
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1        important to have in the record of this case

2        evidence to essentially preserve our

3        position.

4               JUDGE SAINSOT:  You mean if you lose?

5               MR. RATNASWAMY:  Actually, if we win.

6               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Okay.  You're good to

7        go.  Your motion is granted.  ComEd

8        Exhibit 5.3 is entered into evidence.  And

9        you should probably go over admission of the

10        other documents as well.  You know, a motion.

11               MR. RATNASWAMY:  I believe the only

12        other one there's a question as to is 16.5

13        and the quote that's on page -- in his

14        rebuttal, Page 4.

15               JUDGE SAINSOT:  16.5?

16               MR. RATNASWAMY:  Right.  When you've

17        got that, I'd like to address the admission

18        of that.

19               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Okay.

20               MR. RATNASWAMY:  So if ComEd is not

21        offering the quotation for Mr. Collie or the

22        attachment which shows the quotation in
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1        context as any staff witness, ComEd is

2        offering it as a party admission under

3        Illinois Rule of Evidence 801D(2), which

4        exempts it from any requirement of being

5        shown as a prior inconsistent statement to

6        any Witness under Illinois Rule of Evidence

7        613B.

8                   So it's not offered as

9        impeachment.  It's offered of substantive

10        evidence on that basis.  It is, in addition,

11        admissible therefore under Commission rule of

12        practice 200.610, which is the one which

13        incorporates the evidence law.

14                   With respect to Commission

15        Rule 200.640 and the administrative notice,

16        it is ComEd's position that it is not

17        required to move or meet the requirements for

18        administrative notice under that rule,

19        because the quotation and the attachment are

20        admissible under the rules of evidence

21        itself, and if the rule on administrative

22        notice is intended to address matters which
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1        have not been submitted on evidence as

2        evidence.

3                   But notwithstanding that, it is

4        also our position that the quotation and the

5        attachment meet the requirements for

6        administrative notice in more than one

7        respect, including, for example,

8        Rule 200.640 A7, which is admission of the

9        same grounds in which judicial notice may be

10        taken in the circuit courts.  And under

11        Illinois Rule of Evidence 201, this is a

12        matter of which the circuit courts not only

13        could, but would be required to take judicial

14        notice, because it meets the requirements of

15        Rule 201.

16                   So that being said, although we do

17        not believe we are required to move for

18        admission of this function of his rebuttal

19        under the rule for administrative notice, we

20        do believe it meets the requirements.

21               JUDGE SAINSOT:  That's very

22        impressive.  Now, let's back up a little bit.
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1        This is an ordinance, isn't it?

2               MR. RATNASWAMY:  No.  This is -- 16.5

3        is an excerpt from staff witness Collie's

4        rebuttal testimony in the AMRON docket.

5               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Staff, do you have

6        anything?  Or anybody?

7                   So this is just one page here,

8        16.5?

9               MR. RATNASWAMY:  That's correct,

10        because we only had one question and answer

11        on the subject of the treatment of the

12        current and deferred income taxes cash

13        working capital and studies.

14               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Could you explain to

15        me how this is an admission?

16               MR. RATNASWAMY:  It will have to be a

17        little bit of a long answer, so bear with me,

18        please.

19                   In Commonwealth Edison Company's

20        2010 rate case, staff, ComEd, and the

21        ultimate order of the Commission all agreed

22        on the treatment of current and deferred
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1        income taxes in the cash working capital

2        study.  In ComEd's 2011 rate case,

3        Mr. Collie, testifying on behalf of the

4        staff, took a different position.

5                   ComEd and the intervenors all

6        agreed that they should have the same lags

7        and leads, simplifying it a bit, but the

8        ultimate order adopted the staff position.

9        Since then, in the AMRON case, Mr. Collie,

10        testifying on behalf of staff, has gone back

11        to the prior position of staff.  And in fact,

12        he has characterized it as Commission

13        practice in the AMRON case.

14                   In order to preserve this issue,

15        that is new evidence that was not available

16        in the 2011 case, because he didn't file his

17        testimony until after the evidence had all

18        been submitted in the 2011 case, his AMRON

19        testimony.

20                   So it is important to comment and

21        have in the record this new evidence on this

22        subject.  And I would add the additional
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1        point that the AMRON order, which I guess I

2        will ask you to take administrative notice of

3        that was issued on September 19th, both makes

4        the same findings that Mr. Collie stated in

5        the AMRON case, but in addition concluded by

6        saying the Commission recognizes that a

7        different result was adopted in the ComEd

8        docket, Docket Number 11-071.

9               JUDGE SAINSOT:  And 721.

10               MR. RATNASWAMY:  Right.  However, the

11        Commission recognized that ComEd and AIC

12        calculate income taxes using different

13        methodologies.  Should those methodologies be

14        allowed in the future or new evidence be

15        presented, the Commission will certainly

16        visit this issue in future proceedings.

17               JUDGE SAINSOT:  You still didn't

18        answer my question about an admission.  An

19        admission is when you did something bad.

20        Changing your mind is not doing something

21        bad.

22               MR. RATNASWAMY:  Having switched his



L.A. COURT REPORTERS, LLC (312) 419-9292

83

1        position in the 2011 case and then having

2        switched back in the AMRON case to the

3        previous position is an admission under

4        Rule 801, it is our position.

5               JUDGE SAINSOT:  It's a prior

6        inconsistent statement.  It's not an

7        admission.

8               MR. RATNASWAMY:  It is both, your

9        Honor.  Under the rules governing

10        inconsistent statements and hearsay,

11        specifically Rule 801 D2, it is a party

12        admission.  It is true that it's a prior

13        inconsistent statement of courts, but the

14        main point from our perspective is that it is

15        a party admission.

16               JUDGE SAINSOT:  801 D2, statement by a

17        party's agent or servant, is that what we're

18        looking at?

19               MR. RATNASWAMY:  Admission by party

20        opponent is the heading of that subsection.

21               JUDGE SAINSOT:  801 D2?

22               MR. RATNASWAMY:  Yes, your Honor.
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1               JUDGE SAINSOT:  An admission has to

2        do -- an admission has to be something that

3        makes somebody look bad.  I don't see how

4        changing your mind makes you look bad.

5               MR. RATNASWAMY:  Your Honor, the staff

6        has changed its mind back from the position

7        espoused by Ms. Jones in this docket and by

8        the Commission by the staff in the previous

9        docket.

10               JUDGE SAINSOT:  It's not an admission.

11               MR. RATNASWAMY:  Your Honor, then I

12        respectfully want to make an offer of proof.

13               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Go ahead.

14               MR. RATNASWAMY:  My offer of proof

15        simply is to offer the relevant portion of

16        Page 4 of Mr. Hengtgen's rebuttal testimony,

17        beginning at Line 67 and concluding with

18        Line 80, and ComEd Exhibit 16.5.

19               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Could you go over

20        those lines again with me?  Sorry.

21               MR. RATNASWAMY:  I'm sorry, your

22        Honor.  May I back up, please?
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1               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Sure.

2               MR. RATNASWAMY:  Your Honor did also

3        indicate that it is a prior inconsistent

4        statement and would also be admissible under

5        that ground because it is a prior

6        inconsistent statement on a non-collateral

7        matter as to which extrinsic evidence may be

8        offered.  The non-collateral matter is the

9        proper treatment of current and deferred

10        income taxes and cash within capital --

11               JUDGE SAINSOT:  I would agree with

12        you, except Mr. Collie is not a witness in

13        this case.  You can't say that Mr. Collie is

14        an agent of another staff witness.  That's

15        just not the way it goes.

16               MR. RATNASWAMY:  Your Honor, I

17        respectfully disagree.  It is the staff's

18        position.  And if your Honor is stating that

19        each individual staff witness is their own

20        party, that is, I do not believe, consistent

21        with the Public Utilities Act, or the

22        Commission's rules, or even due process.
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1               JUDGE SAINSOT:  They have their own

2        opinions.

3               MR. RATNASWAMY:  They may have their

4        own opinions, but it is a prior inconsistent

5        statement of staff.

6               JUDGE SAINSOT:  It is a prior

7        inconsistent statement of Mr. Collie, and you

8        could have subpoenaed Mr. Collie, and you

9        didn't.  So that is not going into evidence.

10               MR. RATNASWAMY:  Let me complete the

11        offer of proof then.  Your Honor had asked

12        which lines it is.  It is Mr. Hengtgen's

13        rebuttal, lines -- which is ComEd

14        Exhibit 16.0, Lines 67 through 80.  Although

15        in a sense I may be overinclusive.  Sorry.  I

16        wasn't here previously.

17                   Is it your Honor's ruling that you

18        would strike only the quote?  Is Mr. Hengtgen

19        allowed to discuss the inconsistent staff

20        position?

21               JUDGE SAINSOT:  No, because you're

22        talking about the treatment and the
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1        inconsistency, which is -- in essence, he's

2        saying this is a prior inconsistent

3        statement, without using the magic words.  So

4        that whole section should go out.

5               MR. RATNASWAMY:  And then the offer of

6        proof would include as well ComEd

7        Exhibit 16.5, which is an excerpt from staff

8        witness Collie's rebuttal in ICC Docket

9        12-0001.

10               JUDGE SAINSOT:  And 16.5 includes this

11        spreadsheet or AMRON and Illinois adjustment

12        for cash working capital for year ending

13        December 31, 2010.  That would establish what

14        he did financially.

15               MR. RATNASWAMY:  Excuse me.  I was

16        looking at the wrong document.

17               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Do you want to see my

18        copy?

19               MR. RATNASWAMY:  I'm sorry.  What was

20        your Honor's question?  I'm sorry.

21               JUDGE SAINSOT:  No problem.  16.5

22        would also include a spreadsheet kind of
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1        document that's entitled AMRON, an Illinois

2        company, adjustment to cash working capital

3        for the year ending December 31, 2010.

4               THE WITNESS:  Yes, your Honor.

5               MS. LUSSON:  Your Honor, can I ask a

6        question for clarification?  Is it your

7        ruling that if a witness discusses a prior

8        statement by a staff witness that appears to

9        be inconsistent with a statement by a staff

10        witness in the consisting case, and those two

11        witnesses are different, then in order to

12        point that out in a brief, then the parties

13        should either simply discuss what the

14        order -- how the order summarized -- the

15        prior order summarized that witness'

16        testimony, or is it your position that the

17        parties need to actually subpoena that

18        additional witness who's not in this

19        proceeding?

20               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Yes.  I mean, it's

21        really not difficult to subpoena a witness,

22        but you can have a situation where you don't
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1        offer that person a chance to explain his or

2        her prior inconsistent statement and why it's

3        inconsistent.

4                   But you're moving -- just so we're

5        clear, Mr. Ratnaswamy, you're moving for

6        entry into evidence of ComEd Exhibit 5.0,

7        16.0, 21.0, and the attachments, except for

8        the two that we just went over, which you are

9        offering -- making an offer of proof about?

10               MR. RATNASWAMY:  As to those two I'm

11        moving, but unsuccessfully.

12               JUDGE SAINSOT:  So the record is

13        clear.  Okay.  Any objection?

14                   Hearing none, that motion is

15        granted, subject to the offer of proof.  Any

16        cross?

17               MS. LUSSON:  Yes, your Honor.

18 BY MS. LUSSON:

19        Q.     Good afternoon, Mr. Hengtgen.  My name

20 is Karen Lusson.  I'm from the Attorney General's

21 office.

22        A.     Good afternoon.
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1        Q.     If you could turn to Page 4 of your

2 rebuttal testimony, beginning at Line 60.

3        A.     6-0?

4        Q.     Yes.  There you explain how negative

5 current income taxes can result such that no current

6 income taxes were due in calendar year 2011.  Do you

7 see that?

8        A.     I'm sorry.  I was on the wrong

9 testimony.  Line 55 is the question -- Line 60.

10 Yeah, I'm there.

11        Q.     So as I understand your testimony,

12 negative current taxes are not a cash expense or a

13 cash outflow, and they, along with the associated

14 deferred taxes, should not be included in the cash

15 working capital calculation.  Is that your

16 testimony?

17        A.     That is my testimony, yes.

18        Q.     Is it your view that noncash expenses,

19 such as deferred income tax expenses and

20 depreciation expenses, should not be included in

21 lead/lag studies of cash working capital, because

22 these kinds of expenses require no cash outflows?
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1        A.     For those two particular items, I'd

2 agree, yes.

3        Q.     And when current income tax expenses

4 are negative, does that mean that total income tax

5 expenses consist of only deferred income tax

6 expenses, which are recorded as a liability on the

7 balance sheet rather than being paid to the state or

8 governments in cash?

9        A.     Total tax expense for a given year

10 could be a combination of deferred taxes, which I

11 would agree with your characterization of that, and

12 current income tax.  And those current income

13 tax -- whether those deferred taxes could be

14 positive or negative.

15        Q.     Now, at Line 64 of your rebuttal, you

16 note that this situation was also true during

17 calendar year 2010, and in your opinion the staff's

18 calculation and the order in Docket 11-0721 were

19 incorrect on this issue.  Do you see that?

20        A.     Yes.

21        Q.     So first of all, it is correct, isn't

22 it, that ComEd's income taxes were negative for
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1 2011, just to verify?

2        A.     The current taxes available was

3 negative.  Total taxes were positive.

4        Q.     And since ComEd's current income taxes

5 are negative for that period, does that mean there

6 are no cash expenses or cash outflows associated

7 with income taxes that should be -- that should

8 impact the cash working capital amount, in your

9 opinion?

10        A.     Yes, I would agree with that.

11        Q.     Now, looking at Line 75, the same page

12 of your rebuttal --

13               MR. RATNASWAMY:  Your Honor, just to

14        interpose, that part was stricken.  I made an

15        offer of proof.

16               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Right.  So you're

17        going to have to go on to your next question.

18 BY MS. LUSSON:

19        Q.     Is it your opinion that negative

20 current income taxes should be treated the same way

21 for both AMRON and ComEd?

22               MR. RATNASWAMY:  I'll object.  That's
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1        beyond the scope of his testimony, I believe.

2        I don't think -- well, I'll withdraw the

3        objection.

4               THE WITNESS:  I think the cash working

5        capital calculation, rather AMRON or ComEd,

6        should measure cash inflows and cash

7        outflows.  So if both are negative for each

8        company, in my opinion they should be treated

9        the same.

10 BY MS. LUSSON:

11        Q.     Now, if you could look at your

12 Exhibit 16.1 that's attached to your rebuttal

13 testimony.

14        A.     I have it.

15        Q.     There you included negative state and

16 federal income tax at Line 29.  Do you see that?

17        A.     I do see that.

18        Q.     Now, if we could then look back at

19 your Exhibit 5.1.  In your direct testimony and

20 looking at lines 29 and 30, first of all, this was

21 submitted before ComEd revised its capital

22 calculation to comply with the order in
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1 Docket 11-0721.  Is that right?

2        A.     That is correct.  This would

3 be -- this calculation is consistent with my

4 surrebuttal from 11-0721.

5               MR. RATNASWAMY:  Just to be clear, I'm

6        not sure what this was.  Let's identify it.

7        You mean Exhibit 5.1, correct?

8               MS. LUSSON:  This calculation of

9        current state income tax and current federal

10        income tax specifically.

11               MR. RATNASWAMY:  In 5.1?

12               MS. LUSSON:  Correct.

13 BY MS. LUSSON:

14        Q.     With that clarification, is your

15 answer still the same?

16        A.     Yes.

17        Q.     Is it correct in looking at your

18 Exhibit 5.1 that current state and federal income

19 tax expenses were set equal to zero so they would

20 have no impact on the cash working capital

21 calculation?

22        A.     That is correct.
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1        Q.     And do you continue to support,

2 notwithstanding the order in docket 11-0721, the

3 calculation of cash working capital in a way that

4 attributes no cash working capital requirement for

5 negative current income tax expenses?

6        A.     Yes, I do.

7        Q.     Turning your attention to your

8 surrebuttal at Page 1, there you discuss your

9 disagreement with staff witness Jones regarding the

10 inclusion of negative current income taxes and the

11 associated deferred income taxes in her rebuttal

12 calculations.  Do you see that?

13        A.     Yes.

14        Q.     Would you agree that the same internal

15 revenue code and Illinois state income tax laws and

16 regulations apply to both ComEd and AMRON?

17        A.     I'm not a tax expert per se, but I

18 would think that the answer to that question is yes.

19        Q.     And are you aware of any reason why

20 negative income taxes should be treated differently

21 for ComEd versus AMRON within lead/lag studies?

22        A.     Different people do different things.
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1 If I was preparing the lead/lag study, if the facts

2 were the same I would treat the calculations the

3 same for the two companies.

4        Q.     And when you say if the facts were the

5 same, would those facts be that both companies had

6 negative current income taxes?

7        A.     Yeah.  If those facts were the same,

8 negative current income taxes would mean no cash

9 flow, so I would think that would factor out the

10 cash study, yes.

11               MS. LUSSON:  Thank you, Mr. Hengtgen.

12        No further questions.

13               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any redirect?

14               MR. RATNASWAMY:  No redirect, your

15        Honor.

16               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Thank you,

17        Mr. Hengtgen.  You can step down.

18                   Mr. Jirovec?

19               THE WITNESS:  Jirovec, that's right.

20               JUDGE SAINSOT:  I'm just going to

21        swear you in.

22                   (Witness sworn.)
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1 WHEREUPON:

2                     TODD JIROVEC

3 called as a witness herein, having been first duly

4 sworn, deposeth and saith as follows:

5                 E X A M I N A T I O N

6               MR. STAHL:  Before we proceed with

7        Mr. Jirovec, may I enter my appearance in the

8        record of this proceeding?  David Stahl,

9        S-t-a-h-l, firm of Eimer Stahl that's

10        E-i-m-e-r, Stahl, LLP, 224 South Michigan

11        Avenue, Suite 1100, Chicago 60604, on behalf

12        of Commonwealth Edison Company

13               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Thank you, Mr. Stahl.

14 BY MR. STAHL:

15        Q.     Good afternoon,  Mr. Jirovec.

16        A.     Good afternoon.

17               MR. STAHL:  May I proceed?

18               JUDGE SAINSOT:  You may.

19 BY MR. STAHL:

20        Q.     Mr. Jirovec, I'm going to draw your

21 attention to what has been marked as ComEd

22 Exhibit 15.0, and ask you if you have -- are you
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1 familiar with this document?

2        A.     I am.

3        Q.     Before I ask you about it, perhaps you

4 can state your name and your employment for the

5 record.

6        A.     It's Todd J. Jirovec.  I work for Booz

7 and Company.

8        Q.     And with respect to Exhibit 15.0, do

9 you identify that as your rebuttal testimony in this

10 proceeding?

11        A.     Yes.

12        Q.     Was this prepared by you or under your

13 direction and supervision?

14        A.     Yes.

15        Q.     And are the contents of this document

16 true and correct to the best of your knowledge?

17        A.     Yes.

18        Q.     And attached to this document are a

19 number of exhibits, including 15.1, 15.2, 15.3, and

20 15.4.  Is that correct?

21        A.     That's correct.

22        Q.     Were those also prepared by you or
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1 under your supervision?

2        A.     Yes.

3        Q.     And are they accurate to the best of

4 your knowledge?

5        A.     They are.

6        Q.     And if I were to ask you the same

7 questions today as set forth in Exhibit 15.0, would

8 your answers be the same?

9        A.     Yes.

10        Q.     Mr. Jirovec, we also have marked as

11 ComEd Exhibit 20.0 the surrebuttal testimony of Todd

12 Jirovec.  Was that also prepared by you or under

13 your supervision and direction?

14        A.     Yes.

15        Q.     And do you have any corrections that

16 you would like to make to Exhibit 20.1?

17        A.     Yes.

18               MR. STAHL:  And we have hardcopies,

19        which reflect this change that we can give to

20        you, and we'll make the appropriate filings

21        on E-Docket as well.

22               JUDGE SAINSOT:  You don't need to make
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1        any changes to the E-Docket.

2               MR. STAHL: Thank you.

3 BY MR. STAHL:

4        Q.     Could you turn to Page 8 of that

5 exhibit, Mr. Jirovec?

6        A.     I have.

7        Q.     And can you identify where on that

8 page you would like to make a change or correction?

9        A.     On Line 158, after the word testimony,

10 replace shareholders with ComEd customers, and the

11 phrase the vast majority should be replaced with a

12 small portion.  So the phrase should read:  ComEd

13 customers are varying a small portion, about four

14 percent, of the merger related cost incurred in

15 2011.

16        Q.     And with that change, Mr. Jirovec, if

17 I were to ask you the same questions today that are

18 set forth in ComEd Exhibit 20.0, would your answers

19 be the same?

20        A.     Yes.

21               MR. STAHL:  Thank you, Mr. Jirovec.

22        Your Honor, at this time I have no further
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1        questions of Mr. Jirovec, and would move for

2        the admission into evidence ComEd

3        Exhibits 15.0, 15.1, 15.2, 15.3, 15.4, and

4        20.0.

5               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any objection?

6                   Hearing none, your motion is

7        granted.  ComEd Exhibits 15.0, 15.1

8        through 15.4 and 20.0 are entered into

9        evidence.

10               MR. STAHL:  Thank you, your Honor.

11        May I approach and tender copies?

12               JUDGE SAINSOT:  You may.

13               JUDGE SAINSOT:  The Attorney General,

14        CUB, and staff.  Who would like to go first?

15               MS. SATTER:  I'm happy to start.

16          C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N

17 BY MS. SATTER:

18        Q.     Good afternoon, Mr. Jirovec.

19        A.     Good afternoon.

20        Q.     My name is Susan Satter.  I'm

21 representing the People of the State of Illinois.

22                   I'd like to start by asking you to
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1 turn to Page 11 of your Exhibit 15.0, which I

2 believe is your rebuttal.  Do you have a copy?

3               MR. STAHL:  I'll give him a copy.

4               MS. SATTER:  If you want to testify

5        without paper, I would be really impressed.

6               THE WITNESS:  I don't have that

7        memorized.

8               MR. STAHL:  He may be able to.

9               MS. SATTER:  You probably know what

10        you wrote, but even so.

11               THE WITNESS:  Just a refresher would

12        help.

13               MS. SATTER:  If you have the

14        surrebuttal as well, that would be helpful.

15        Thank you.

16               MR. STAHL:  Yes.

17 BY MS. SATTER:

18        Q.     So here we are in your rebuttal

19 testimony, Page 11.

20        A.     Okay.

21        Q.     And at Lines 243 and 244, you say that

22 the net level of savings identified for ComEd
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1 described earlier are not shared, but will benefit

2 only ComEd customers.

3                   So my question to you is:  Is this

4 because under formula rate-making in Illinois, all

5 recorded expenses with the distribution company for

6 a prior year are included in the revenue requirement

7 and then subject to retroactive reconciliation?  Is

8 it because of the formula rate-making process?

9        A.     I'm not familiar with the formula

10 rate-making process here in Illinois.  The intent of

11 that statement was just to describe the fact that

12 the synergies and that cost identified for ComEd

13 would flow to ComEd customers as they are incurred

14 or achieved.

15        Q.     And is that in contrast to other

16 rate-making systems, such as Maryland, where the

17 synergies are the same if they're not to the next

18 rate --

19        A.     It's in contrast to other merger

20 proceedings where the net benefits to customers are

21 often shared between customers and shareholders in

22 order to determine whether the particular merger
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1 meets the standard in that state for approval.

2        Q.     So what you're saying is that the

3 savings are not being shared with the shareholders?

4        A.     Correct.

5        Q.     And however that happens, you don't

6 know the details of it, but that's the conclusion?

7        A.     That's the distinction we're making.

8        Q.     Now, you were involved in initially

9 developing the synergies and the costs and the

10 savings associated with the merger.  Is that

11 correct?

12        A.     That's correct.

13        Q.     And were you involved in the Federal

14 Energy Regulatory Commission presentation of savings

15 in connection with the application for approval of a

16 merger of Exelon Constellation?

17        A.     I was not aware of any savings being

18 deferred to on that issue.

19        Q.     Are you aware of how the treatment of

20 potential savings and costs were presented to FERC?

21        A.     I am not aware of that.

22        Q.     Were you involved in the Maryland
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1 proceeding?

2        A.     I was.

3        Q.     The proceeding being the proceeding

4 requesting approval of the merger between

5 Constellation and Exelon?

6        A.     That's correct.

7        Q.     And to the best of your knowledge,

8 Maryland does not have formula rates, correct?

9        A.     To the best of my knowledge, I'm not

10 aware of their rate-making policy.

11        Q.     Do you know whether or not, in fact,

12 merger costs in Maryland would be recovered

13 immediately or upon the next rate of filing?

14        A.     I do not know that.

15        Q.     Do you know whether -- have you

16 reviewed the order issued by the Maryland Public

17 Service Commission in connection with the merger

18 application?

19        A.     Parts of it.  It's a lengthy order,

20 but I've read portions of it.

21        Q.     Have you read the portions that have

22 to do with merger savings?
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1        A.     There are references to merger savings

2 throughout the order, and I have read some portions

3 of that, yes.

4        Q.     Do you understand how merger savings

5 and costs will be treated in the state of Maryland

6 for Baltimore Gas and Electric?

7        A.     Not subsequent to the merger approval.

8 The study we helped prepare for an estimate of

9 merger savings to BGE from the transaction between

10 the two companies, and that was used as a

11 basis -- one of the bases for the Commission to

12 determine whether or not the merger met the state

13 standards.  Subsequent to that, I'm not familiar

14 with any treatment of specific costs or savings.

15        Q.     Do you recall whether Exelon committed

16 that it would ensure that the merger was neutral to

17 BGE customers?

18        A.     I don't recall that specific language.

19        Q.     Do you recall whether Exelon committed

20 to provide quarterly reports on the activities of

21 the Exelon utilities to allow the Maryland

22 Commission to review the costs allocated to BGE?
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1        A.     I don't recall specifically that

2 provision.  I do recall that they were required to

3 present some comparison of service company type

4 costs before and after the merger.

5        Q.     Was that required by the order?

6        A.     There are several commitments within

7 the order.  I think I recall that being one of those

8 commitments.

9        Q.     Was that commitment part of the

10 Maryland Commission's discussion of whether

11 ratepayers would be harmed by the transaction?

12        A.     I think there were several factors the

13 Commission looked at to evaluate the benefits to

14 customers in this transaction.  I can't recall that

15 specific particular commitment being articulated in

16 the order as the reason for accepting the merger,

17 but that was one of the commitments I recall being

18 made in the transaction.

19        Q.     Do you recall a commitment being made

20 that the companies would track an account for any

21 merger-related synergy savings in the next rate

22 case?
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1        A.     I do recall that commitment.

2        Q.     Now, on Pages 17 to 19 of your

3 rebuttal testimony, you discuss various tracking

4 processes, that is tracking of I assume savings and

5 costs.  Is that correct?

6        A.     That's correct.

7        Q.     And on Page 19 you discuss an

8 integration office?

9        A.     Yes.

10        Q.     And that integration office also

11 suggests merger savings and costs.  Is that correct?

12        A.     The immigration office is responsible

13 for the natural integration and implementation of

14 the merger initiatives with savings and synergies,

15 and this would be one of those, as well as other

16 aspects of the transaction.

17        Q.     So do those efforts enable

18 Commonwealth Edison management to track the costs

19 and savings associated with the merger?

20        A.     The integration office and the

21 integration plan has developed a process to track

22 synergy initiatives and costs to achieve those
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1 synergy initiatives.  Those are being monitored

2 through the integration office.

3        Q.     Do you agree that Commonwealth Edison

4 can track merger costs and savings from Commonwealth

5 Edison distribution rates to the same degree that

6 merger costs and savings can be tracked in, for

7 example, FERC, transmission jurisdiction, or in

8 Maryland?

9        A.     Could you repeat that question?

10        Q.     Do you believe that Commonwealth

11 Edison can track merger costs and savings for

12 Commonwealth Edison distribution to the same degree

13 that merger costs and savings can be tracked in

14 connection with FERC transmission rates on the rates

15 of BGE and Maryland?

16        A.     I think the integration office has set

17 up a process by which to track merger synergies that

18 will benefit multiple stakeholders, whether they're

19 ComEd, other jurisdictions, or shareholders to be

20 able to report on the attainment of those synergies

21 that have been sided.

22        Q.     So it's the same process for all of



L.A. COURT REPORTERS, LLC (312) 419-9292

110

1 these --

2        A.     It's one process to support multiple

3 stakeholder groups.

4        Q.     So when you say multiple stakeholder

5 groups, that would be multiple companies of Exelon

6 and Constellation?

7        A.     That's correct.

8        Q.     Now, on Page 12 of your rebuttal

9 testimony, at Line 249, you say:  Mr. Brosch focuses

10 only on the potential risks of ComEd customers

11 without any benefits to those customers.  So my

12 question to you is:  Do you agree for 2011 there

13 were no merger related savings for Commonwealth

14 Edison?

15        A.     The merger was not consummated until

16 April 2012, so by definition you can't achieve

17 merger savings until after the confirmation of the

18 transaction.  So in 2011, that's correct, no merger

19 savings could be realized legally.

20        Q.     So there was no reduction in rates as

21 a result of that, or as a result of the merger

22 activity?
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1        A.     There were no merger savings realized

2 in 2011 prior to the transaction close.

3        Q.     Now, on the next line, you say:  Risks

4 to both shareholders and customers are inherent in

5 any merger transaction.  Would you agree that how

6 merger costs and savings are treated for rate-making

7 purposes will directly affect how risks are shared

8 between shareholders and ratepayers?

9        A.     I believe both groups have risk of

10 synergy attainment, both shareholders and customers,

11 and in order to achieve the benefits of the

12 transactional costs to achieve those synergies need

13 to be occurred.  So both shareholders and customers

14 share those risks, both on benefit attainment and

15 cost occurrence.

16        Q.     Does the regulatory treatment of

17 savings and costs affect the degree of risk borne by

18 ratepayers or shareholders?

19        A.     I'm not an expert on regulatory

20 accounting or those costs, but those costs do

21 provide benefits in the future that ComEd will

22 realize.
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1        Q.     So if ComEd is able to fully recover

2 merger costs in Illinois without any conditions,

3 that is without regard to savings or any other

4 conditions, reporting for example, would you agree

5 that shareholders face lower risks than if such

6 merger associated costs are conditioned; in other

7 words, if recovery of such merger related costs are

8 subject to conditions?

9        A.     I believe shareholders are assuming a

10 lot of risks on the attainment of these merger

11 synergies.  Both on the incurring of those costs as

12 well as the delivery of expenses it has are subject

13 to a robust integration plan and integration

14 execution plan that needs to be followed in order

15 for both customers and shareholders to be benefited.

16        Q.     Are you finished?

17        A.     Um-hum.

18        Q.     So you can't say or you don't know

19 whether the regulatory treatment, that is whether

20 there are conditions on the recovery of costs and

21 savings, would affect the risks facing shareholders

22 in connection with merger results?
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1               MR. STAHL:  I object to the question.

2        I think it's been asked and answered.

3               MS. SATTER:  He hasn't really answered

4        the question.  I'm just trying to find out if

5        it's because he just doesn't know, or if he

6        didn't understand the question.  I don't

7        think the question was answered.

8               MR. STAHL:  I disagree, and I think

9        it's unfair to premise your question when he

10        can't answer the question, when in fact he

11        did answer the question in his own words.

12               MS. SATTER:  I think it's up to the

13        witness to correct me if I'm wrong.

14               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Overruled.  She can

15        ask it again.

16               THE WITNESS:  These costs, these

17        merger costs have been incurred in a benefit

18        to ComEd customers to synergy realization.

19        The regulatory treatment of that, I don't

20        have an opinion on other than these costs do

21        benefit ComEd customers in the future.

22 BY MS. SATTER:
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1        Q.     So you don't have an opinion on

2 whether other regulatory treatment affects the risk

3 faced by shareholders versus the risk borne by

4 ratepayers?

5        A.     I believe both stakeholder groups

6 share both the risks and benefits attained.

7        Q.     Are among the risks shareholders will

8 face that the newer modified information systems may

9 not integrate the way the company expects them to?

10        A.     That's a risk of the transaction in

11 the integrating planning process -- plans have been

12 developed to mitigate those type of risks; migration

13 plans that combine the two systems into one common

14 system that forces the company to realize synergies

15 do standardization and single process and

16 elimination of duplication.

17        Q.     And another risk is that the treatment

18 of modified information systems might cost more than

19 anticipated.  Is that right?

20        A.     There are several types of costs to

21 achieve that I describe in my testimony of which

22 information technology or integration costs is one



L.A. COURT REPORTERS, LLC (312) 419-9292

115

1 of those costs to achieve; companies managing the

2 risks of costs incurrence from the standpoint of

3 establishing estimates for those areas of cost and

4 trying to manage against those systems.

5        Q.     So if the costs for integrating

6 information systems exceed the benefit for

7 that -- let's put it this way:  Assume

8 hypothetically that the cost for the information

9 system exceeds the benefit associated with

10 information systems.  If all the costs of the

11 integration are passed through to consumers without

12 regard to savings, would then the consumers absorb

13 the risk of that cost overrun?

14        A.     I'm not sure I understand the

15 hypothetical.  The cost to achieve the transaction,

16 the savings are lower than the savings that are --

17        Q.     The costs are higher.

18        A.     The costs -- the savings exceed the

19 costs, so there's a net saving of the customers over

20 time from this transaction.  So the costs of your

21 hypothetical -- for an integration system, there are

22 multiple benefits that are produced for that
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1 integration; not just system benefits, but processed

2 benefits, and other labor related and

3 non-labor-related benefits.

4                   That particular synergy initiative

5 would be managed to make sure that benefits exceed

6 those costs before proceeding with the actual

7 implementation of those programs.

8        Q.     So you won't accept as a hypothetical

9 that the costs would exceed the benefit?  You can't

10 see that as a possibility?

11        A.     Not in its entirety, no.  The benefits

12 far outweigh the costs in this transaction.

13        Q.     But for a particular component of the

14 transaction, for my hypothetical, you can't accept

15 that that possibility consists that a component of

16 the integration process would result in -- costs in

17 excess of what were anticipated or in excess of what

18 was saved?

19        A.     It's hard for me to parse out specific

20 components of the program together and make those

21 kind of conclusions.

22        Q.     Did you participate in assessing the
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1 risks to shareholders associated with the Exelon

2 Constellation merger?

3        A.     No.

4        Q.     So if I were to ask you -- let me ask

5 you this:  Is achieving the anticipated benefits of

6 the merger, including whether the business of Exelon

7 Constellation can be integrated in an efficient,

8 effective and timely manner a risk to shareholders?

9        A.     Can you point to me where you're

10 reading from?

11        Q.     Well, I'm asking you if that's a risk

12 that you're aware of.

13        A.     Can you describe that again or please

14 repeat that?

15        Q.     Let me come back to it, and then I'll

16 give you the document.  That will be easier.  Let me

17 finish with your testimony first.

18                   Again, in your rebuttal testimony,

19 Pages 15 and 16, Line 337 to 338, you talk about the

20 change in the MMF charge factor.

21        A.     That's correct.

22        Q.     And you say that in 2011, the MMF
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1 allocation or the MMF factor was 29.4 percent, but

2 it will go down to 19.57 percent in 2012.  Is that

3 right?

4        A.     That's correct.

5        Q.     So the $7.2 million in merger costs,

6 are they based on the 2011 allocation?

7        A.     To the extent they were allocated

8 using the MMF methodology, they would have been

9 applied using the 2011 factor, because these were

10 costs prior to the merger close.

11        Q.     Were there costs that were allocated

12 to the Exelon side of the business as well -- I mean

13 to the Constellation side of the business?

14        A.     Sure, yes.

15        Q.     Do you know how much?

16        A.     I don't specifically know how much,

17 but they would have competitive businesses and

18 regulated business as well that would follow the

19 same methodology around cost allocation.

20        Q.     Do you know what portion of

21 Constellation's operations are competitive and what

22 portion are regulated?
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1        A.     On a standalone basis prior to the

2 transaction?

3        Q.     Yeah.

4        A.     Roughly, I think it's 30 percent

5 regulated, 70 percent unregulated.  That's my

6 recollection.

7        Q.     So you refer to an MMF allocation.

8 Could you describe what the MMF allocation factor

9 is?

10        A.     To the best of my ability, I will.

11 The Modify Massachusetts Factor, it's a three-part

12 allocation process that uses direct labor, revenue,

13 and I believe gross assets as the factors to be able

14 to compare each of the operating companies along

15 those dimensions and determine, based on those three

16 scale factors, how much of the cost should be

17 attributed to the various companies.

18        Q.     And the costs that are subject to that

19 allocation, are those all the costs associated with

20 the merger, or only a subset of the costs associated

21 with the merger?

22        A.     Are you talking about 2011 merger
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1 costs?

2        Q.     Yes.   Let's start with 2011.

3        A.     My understanding is the majority of

4 the costs -- merger costs in 2011 were allocated

5 using the MMF factor.  There might have been some

6 other allocation factors the company uses and a

7 normal cost allocation scheme used, but primarily

8 the MMF factor was used.

9        Q.     Does that allocate among regulated and

10 unregulated within the company?

11        A.     In the standalone Exelon context, yes,

12 it would allocate between Commonwealth Edison, Pico,

13 and the other competitive businesses under the

14 Exelon umbrella.

15        Q.     And what about Constellation?

16        A.     In 2011 we're talking about -- these

17 are pre-merger.  So going forward, the Constellation

18 competitive businesses would be blended with the

19 Exelon competitive businesses and you'd have three

20 utilities now underneath the portfolio of entities;

21 BGE, ComEd, and Pico.

22        Q.     But at this point, we're just looking
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1 at allocations for Commonwealth Edison, correct?

2               MR. STAHL:  Let me object.  I think

3        the record is going to be clear at this point

4        being before 2011.

5               MS. SATTER:  Let me withdraw the

6        question, because I see what

7        you're -- there's some confusion about which

8        group we're talking about.

9 BY MS. SATTER:

10        Q.     Tell me whether the allocations

11 account for a situation where a particular

12 subsidiary might require more integration services

13 than a different subsidiary.

14        A.     Let me make sure I understand the

15 question.  Integration services, describe that.

16        Q.     The costs associated with a merger

17 savings and synergies.

18        A.     Sure.  Consistent with the allocation

19 framework the company uses, to the extent the

20 company can direct assigned costs to a particular

21 operating entity, it would do that.  If they don't

22 fall under a direct assignment or other general
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1 allocator that they typically use, they would kind

2 of default to the Modified Massachusetts Formula as

3 being representative of how the costs should be

4 distributed among the operating companies.

5        Q.     Do you know if there were any direct

6 assigned costs to Commonwealth Edison?

7        A.     I'm not aware of any in 2011.

8        Q.     Do you know of any direct assigned

9 costs to Exelon Generation?

10        A.     Yes.  Yes.

11        Q.     You talk about day one operations,

12 mostly in your surrebuttal testimony.  Are you

13 referring to the first day after closing?

14        A.     Yes.

15        Q.     So can you describe what changed to

16 Commonwealth Edison on day one?

17        A.     I think largely the operations were

18 unchanged as to the BSC support functions that

19 support the operations of ComEd were changed.  The

20 two companies came together.  It's now a

21 consolidated services company that has synergy

22 opportunities to do those services at a lower cost
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1 level, and so the costs to provide those services

2 would be lower to ComEd day one and beyond.

3        Q.     So the BSC is anticipated to provide

4 basically the same services to ComEd as it did

5 before the merger; the same types of services?

6               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Just for the record,

7        what BSC is.

8               MS. SATTER:  I'm sorry.  That's the

9        Exelon Business Services Company, correct?

10               THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

11               JUDGE SAINSOT:  As opposed to BGE.

12               MS. SATTER:  Baltimore Gas and

13        Electric.

14               MR. STAHL:  BSC is an umbrella

15        services company providing services to all of

16        the operating companies.

17               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Thank you.  I knew

18        that, but I just wanted to make sure that

19        somebody reading the transcript wasn't

20        confused or totally turned off by all the

21        acronyms.

22               MS. SATTER:  Thank you.  I'm sorry.  I
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1        appreciate that.

2               JUDGE SAINSOT:  But thank you,

3        Counsel.

4 BY MS. SATTER:

5        Q.     Now, you've testified that the MMF

6 allocations will be reduced with the larger company,

7 but isn't it also true that the total costs to be

8 allocated will increase?

9        A.     The Business Services Company will be

10 larger post merger because of a combination of

11 Exelon and Constellation.  The costs allocated to

12 ComEd will be lower post merger than they are at

13 pre-merger.  There's a table in my rebuttal

14 testimony that demonstrates that.

15        Q.     Also in your surrebuttal testimony,

16 you refer to labor related savings.  That's on

17 Page 4, Line 75.  Do you know whether there was a

18 reduction in employees at ComEd resulting from the

19 merger in 2011?

20        A.     There was not.

21        Q.     Was there a reduction in employees on

22 day one?
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1        A.     At ComEd?

2        Q.     Yeah.

3        A.     I don't believe so, no.

4        Q.     Were there labor-related savings at

5 ComEd on day one?

6        A.     I do not believe so.  Not

7 merger-related labor-related savings.

8        Q.     Now, you're an expert on mergers and

9 merger synergies.  Is that correct?

10        A.     I perform multiple studies over

11 different transactions, that's correct.

12        Q.     And do you have experience in the

13 energy area?

14        A.     Yes.  I'm dedicated to primarily the

15 utility sector, or the energy sector.

16        Q.     Are you familiar with -- first, are

17 you familiar with whether the Federal Energy

18 Regulatory Commission, FERC, has to approve energy

19 consolidations for mergers?

20        A.     My recollection is in previous years,

21 they had jurisdictional merger combinations, but now

22 it's been more limited to market power issues around
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1 how the generation assets compare on a combined

2 basis and whether there's market power in certain

3 specific markets that the combined companies operate

4 in.

5        Q.     Do you know were they the transmission

6 rates as well, the effective merger on transmission

7 rates?

8        A.     I was not asked to support the company

9 in any of that analysis if it was required, but I

10 don't recall that being an issue.

11        Q.     So as an expert, this is not something

12 that you've encountered in the past?

13        A.     Not for transmission issues as it

14 relates to merges, that's correct.

15               MS. SATTER:  If I could just have half

16        a minute, I might be finished.

17 BY MS. SATTER:

18        Q.     Are you familiar with the Exelon

19 corporation's 10-Q for its second quarter of 2012?

20        A.     I'm familiar with the 10-Q filings.

21 I'm not familiar with that particular one.

22        Q.     Let me show you what we'll mark as
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1 Cross Exhibit 2.

2               MS. SATTER:  For the record, AG Cross

3        Exhibit 2 is a 10-Q quarterly report pursuant

4        to Section 13 or 15D filed on 8/9/2012,

5        filing period 6/30/2012.  And there's a table

6        of contents at the beginning, but this is an

7        excerpt, and the last two pages are Pages 215

8        and 216.

9 BY MS. SATTER:

10        Q.     My question to you is:  Do you agree

11 that the 10-Q related the risks facing Exelon

12 shareholders in connection with the Constellation

13 Exelon transaction?

14        A.     I'm sorry.  If I understand your

15 questions, on these two pages there's one, two,

16 three, four, five major risks identified, one being

17 the merger may not achieve its anticipated results,

18 and Exelon may be unable to integrate the operations

19 of Constellation in the manner expected.

20        Q.     I'm sorry.  You're a little hard to

21 hear sometimes.

22        A.     Can you clarify the question again and
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1 what language you'd like me to --

2        Q.     I'd like you to look at 1A, risk

3 factors, and I'd like to ask you if you believe that

4 this -- the statements on Pages 215 and 216 under

5 risk factors accurately reflect the risks to Exelon

6 shareholders as you understand them in connection

7 with the Exelon Constellation transaction.

8        A.     I didn't help draft this language, but

9 yes, it would seem to characterize the types of

10 risks the shareholders would face from this

11 transaction.

12               MS. SATTER:  Rather than reading them

13        into the record, I'd just like to move for

14        the admission of this exhibit.

15               MR. STAHL:  Your Honor, I would object

16        simply on the grounds that as the witness

17        just testified, he had no role in preparing

18        this.  There's no question it's an authentic

19        document, but it does seem to me that it's

20        not appropriate to introduce this through

21        this witness.

22               MS. SATTER:  Is there another ComEd
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1        witness that might be more appropriate, like

2        Mr. Trpik?

3               MR. STAHL:  I don't know.

4               JUDGE SAINSOT:  What is this Thomson

5        Reuters on here?

6               MS. SATTER:  That's the agency that

7        processes the papers for the SEC.

8               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Right.  They own

9        Westfall.

10               MS. SATTER:  Do they?

11               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Yeah.  So how did you

12        get this?

13               MS. SATTER:  How did I get it?

14               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Right.

15               MS. SATTER:  It's on the internet.

16               JUDGE SAINSOT:  So it's a public

17        document?

18               MS. SATTER:  Yes.  Oh, absolutely.

19               JUDGE SAINSOT:  So why don't you just

20        ask for --

21               MS. SATTER:  Administrative notice?

22               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Yeah.
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1               MS. SATTER:  Judge, may I request

2        administrative notice of the Exelon 10-Q?  It

3        is available -- it's publicly available.

4        These are documents that are filed pursuant

5        to the Securities and Exchange Commission and

6        federal law.

7               MR. STAHL:  As I said, I had no doubt

8        about the authenticity of the document, but I

9        don't think that this is something that is

10        appropriate for administrative notice, to the

11        extent that now we're going to be giving

12        substantive content and accepting the

13        substance of documents to which there's been

14        no foundation laid and no witness available

15        to provide the context for this.  I think

16        it's a dangerous precedent, and I'm not sure

17        if the prerequisites for administrative

18        notice have been met here either.

19               JUDGE SAINSOT:  What's missing?

20               MR. STAHL:  Well, I'm not sure.  I

21        don't think any requirement of the

22        administrative notice -- we've had no notice,
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1        for example, that any party was requesting

2        that administrative notice be taken of this.

3               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Well, you have it now.

4               MR. STAHL:  We have it now, but it

5        doesn't give us an opportunity to present a

6        witness in response to any of this to provide

7        the context for this.

8                   I will tell you I can ask

9        Mr. Jirovec on redirect examination -- I can

10        address his attention to these particular

11        risks and have him explain why they are not,

12        in fact, significant risks at this point, or

13        at least not risks that can't be overcome.

14        But not all documents with administrative

15        notice will fall into that category.

16                   There may not be a witness

17        available who can respond on five minutes'

18        notice to what is set forth in a document, so

19        I think it's a bit of a dangerous precedent.

20               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Well, let me ask you

21        this, Ms. Satter:  What does this prove?

22               MS. SATTER:  One of the questions is
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1        what are the risks that are facing

2        shareholders versus the risks facing

3        ratepayers in connection with merger costs

4        and savings.  Does the regulatory process

5        address the treatment of those risks and the

6        allocation of those risks?

7                   So I think Mr. Jirovec very

8        directly testified yes, this is a

9        direct -- these are fair, accurate,

10        assessments of the risks facing shareholders.

11        So that's part of the equation.  And again,

12        these are public documents.  As far as having

13        a witness to put in this context, this has to

14        do with the risk facing shareholders that

15        Mr. Jirovec raised in his testimony.  So this

16        is a cross exhibit.

17               MR. STAHL:  Your Honor, the other

18        piece of this is Mr. Jirovec has testified

19        quite completely in his testimony about the

20        fact that both shareholders and customers

21        face risks as a result of not only this

22        transaction, but all merger transactions.  He
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1        has described in great detail in his

2        testimony the efforts the company is

3        undertaking to make sure that the synergies

4        he has identified and that the companies have

5        identified will, in fact, be realized.

6                   I don't think there's any secret

7        about the fact that there are risks in a

8        merger transaction.  I don't think this

9        document adds anything but what's already in

10        the record.  This document doesn't say

11        anything about the regulatory aspects of

12        these risks or how regulatory treatment can

13        mitigate these risks, or anything of that

14        nature.

15                   There's nothing in here that is

16        new that's not already in the record in both

17        Mr. Brosch's testimony and in Mr. Jirovec's

18        testimony.  I think it's just cumulative, and

19        given the fact that there's no witness here

20        to respond on this, I think it's

21        impermissible to have this become part of the

22        record.



L.A. COURT REPORTERS, LLC (312) 419-9292

134

1               JUDGE SAINSOT:  I don't think you need

2        a witness to sponsor a public record.  What

3        would you get, somebody from the Security and

4        Exchange Commission?  Come on.

5               MR. STAHL:  No, no.  I wouldn't get

6        someone from the public exchange.  What if

7        this were a report from some third-party,

8        that -- for example, a rating agency that

9        talked about the risks to Exelon?

10               JUDGE SAINSOT:  That would be

11        different.  But this is something that Exelon

12        filed, and this is something that is required

13        by the Security and Exchange Commission.

14                   I think, however, Mr. Stahl does

15        appear at least to have a point, and that is

16        this doesn't really seem to add anything new.

17               MS. SATTER:  You know, one of the

18        questions was the extent and a description of

19        the risks facing stakeholders, and we believe

20        that this is a fair and public disclosure and

21        description of those risks.

22                   I believe that -- you know, we



L.A. COURT REPORTERS, LLC (312) 419-9292

135

1        talked about that a bit on cross-examination,

2        but not to the same extent.  I could just ask

3        him specific questions off this.  Frankly, I

4        thought it might be quicker to just have the

5        document in the record for anybody to comment

6        on.  We were talking about the risks facing

7        shareholders.

8               MR. STAHL:  I think Ms. Satter has

9        just come up with a great idea, and that is

10        if she wants to cross-examine this witness

11        about these risks, that's what we ought to

12        do.  It's not a question of having the

13        document in the record for anybody to comment

14        on.  That's not the purpose of having a

15        document in the record.

16                   The purpose of a document like

17        this is to say:  Mr. Jirovec, do you agree

18        that one of the risks of this transaction is

19        the merger may not achieve its anticipated

20        result?  Then he can answer that, and we'll

21        have actual evidence in the record.

22               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Mr. Stahl, I have to
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1        ask you a really stupid question.  If I were

2        you, I'd want this in the record.  So I

3        guess -- this makes the company look good.

4               MR. STAHL:  The company has to provide

5        this kind of information.  There's no

6        guarantee about anything.  These are

7        obviously requirements that must be complied

8        with.

9                   I'm not going to go to the mat on

10        this thing.  All I'm concerned about -- and

11        my concern is really not so much about this

12        particular document, but the precedent of

13        allowing in unsponsored reports in a case in

14        which there is no witness available to

15        provide cross-examination testimony.

16               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Really in discovery

17        you're really supposed to ask what is your

18        evidence.  And if you're not, then that's not

19        a good thing.  So that doesn't help you.

20               MR. STAHL:  Your Honor, rather than

21        continue this discussion, we will stipulate

22        to the admission of this without having the
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1        examiner be required to rule on it or the

2        judges be required to rule on it.

3               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Anybody else have an

4        objection?

5               MS. SATTER:  I just have -- I'm hoping

6        there will be one last question.

7               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Let's just admit it

8        then.

9               MS. SATTER:  Oh, thank you.

10               JUDGE SAINSOT:  AG Cross Exhibit 2,

11        which is a 10-Q quarterly report filed on

12        August 9, 2012, by the Exelon Corporation,

13        and it is a form filed with and required by

14        the United States Securities and Exchange

15        Commission.

16                   Okay.  You can continue.

17 BY MS. SATTER:

18        Q.     Mr. Jirovec, I have a question for

19 your rebuttal testimony on Page 12.  You talk

20 about -- on Lines 252 through 255, you say:  The

21 critical consideration is whether sufficient

22 analysis has been performed to identify savings and
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1 controls have been put in place to provide

2 reasonable assurance that these savings will be

3 realized in order to mitigate for all stakeholders

4 those risks.

5                   So the controls that you're

6 talking about here, these are internal company

7 controls, correct?

8        A.     Correct.  The integration office has

9 been established to monitor the legalization of

10 these synergies.  Synergy initiatives have been

11 developed with that specific accountability for

12 individuals identified to execute against these

13 initiatives, and there's tracking and reporting on a

14 regular basis to understand the process against

15 those initiatives.

16        Q.     And in Maryland, the Commission

17 adopted regulatory controls so that merger costs and

18 savings will be reported on a regular basis.  Isn't

19 that right?

20        A.     I'm not trying to agree to use the

21 word controls in the same context.  We did discuss

22 earlier there was a commitment as part of the
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1 transaction for synergies to be tracked in the next

2 proceeding I believe is what we said.

3        Q.     Tracked and reported to the

4 Commission.  Is that correct?

5        A.     I believe that's what we said, yes.

6        Q.     And that was done to protect consumers

7 from risks associated with costs.  Isn't that

8 correct?

9        A.     I'm not sure what the Commission's

10 intent with that particular commitment was, but

11 there was a series of commitments made in that

12 transaction.

13               MS. SATTER:  Thank you.  I have no

14        further questions.

15               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Let's take a 15-minute

16        break.  Let's be back at 3:15.

17               MR. STAHL:  Is there additional cross

18        of Mr. Jirovec?

19               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Does anybody else need

20        to cross Mr. Jirovec?

21               MS. SODERING:  No.  I through maybe it

22        was important that you know that Ms. Satter
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1        covered all the ground that I was going to

2        cover, so I really don't have any questions

3        for the witness.

4               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Staff, do you have

5        questions?

6               MR. SAGONE:  No, no questions from

7        staff.

8               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Okay.  So that's good.

9        It looks like you have some redirect?

10               MR. STAHL:  It will be very brief.

11        All right.  3:15.

12               (A recess transpired.)

13               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Mr. Stahl, you can

14        proceed.

15               MR. STAHL:  Thank you, your Honor.

16       R E D I R E C T   E X A M I N A T I O N

17 BY MR. STAHL:

18        Q.     Just very briefly by way of redirect,

19 Mr. Jirovec, what is the total net savings to be

20 realized as a result of the Exelon Constellation

21 merger through the period 2011 through 2016?  And

22 this is just a foundational question to get to the
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1 issue of risks that Ms. Satter raised.

2        A.     Net savings to ComEd?

3        Q.     Yes.

4        A.     Net savings over that time period will

5 be $156 million.

6        Q.     And that's net of the so-called costs

7 to achieve?

8        A.     That's correct.

9        Q.     Now, there's been some question about

10 the source of those savings, and by source I mean

11 what will produce those savings.  We understand

12 there have been no savings in 2011 because the

13 merger was not consummated.  But beginning in 2012

14 and following years, I think if you look at the

15 period through 2016, just as a general proposition,

16 what operational matters account for the achievement

17 of those expected savings?

18        A.     There's 500 categories of merger

19 savings.  Those in the information technology are by

20 combining ComEd technology platforms, corporate

21 program savings would be non-labor related programs

22 and things like insurance, administration of benefit
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1 plans, lower professional services costs.

2                   Supply chain related savings, the

3 ability to combine materials and supplies and

4 contracted services spent on an integrated basis to

5 reflect the economy and scale benefits, and then

6 finally allowing the common functions, primarily in

7 the business service company practice areas for

8 things like finance and accounting and legal to be

9 able to avoid overlapping duplication between the

10 two predecessor companies.  So there's four primary

11 buckets of savings opportunities.

12        Q.     And we've been talking about the

13 period through 2016.  You've presented the

14 $156 million number.  Did the savings end in 2017

15 and years after that, or what happens in those

16 following years?

17        A.     Once the savings is realized, the

18 benefit of those savings is perpetuity.

19        Q.     And has an estimate been presented of

20 what those annual savings into perpetuity are likely

21 to be in the range of?

22        A.     I would use the last year of savings
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1 in the table of my rebuttal testimony, which

2 indicates $66 million in net savings.  Those would

3 grow with escalation in the perpetuity.  In fact, no

4 costs to achieve will be incurred to those savings,

5 so that 66 is a good representation of the

6 opportunity of the future.

7        Q.     Now, let's just talk about the risks

8 for a minute.  Since the merger was closed in March

9 of 2012, has Exelon been monitoring the achievement

10 of these savings that you have just described?

11        A.     Yes.  At the integration office,

12 that's been established.  There's been a pretty

13 rigorous month of reporting process established

14 where individual teams and owners compile the status

15 of those savings, attainment, and those are

16 aggregated into a monthly report that's reviewed by

17 the integration committee.

18        Q.     And are you or any of your other

19 colleagues participants in that integration office

20 effort?

21        A.     We have a small team supporting the

22 integration office individuals.  That's correct.
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1        Q.     To the best of your knowledge, is the

2 achievement of the identified savings as we sit here

3 today on September 25th, 2012, six months after the

4 close, is achievement of those expected savings on

5 track?

6        A.     Yes.  The company anticipates to be

7 able to realize the savings that have been

8 estimated.

9        Q.     And just to turn the question around

10 or ask it a little differently, has the integration

11 office identified during this six-month period any

12 obstacles that would prevent achievement of these

13 expected savings in any substantial parts?

14        A.     Not substantial obstacles.

15        A.     With any initiative or integration,

16 there's certainly initial risks that are identified

17 at that program or initial level, but those have

18 been identified and integration plans have been

19 developed to help lower those risks.  But nothing

20 major that would result in the un-achievement of

21 these opportunities.

22               MR. STAHL:  Thank you.  I have nothing
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1        further.

2               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any recross?

3

4

5         R E C R O S S   E X A M I N A T I O N

6 BY MS. SATTER:

7        Q.     I just wanted to ask you:  You

8 referred to $156 million in savings.  That's from

9 Page 5 of your rebuttal testimony.  Is that right?

10        A.     That's correct.

11        Q.     And when you talked about the source

12 of the savings, that's on Pages 12 and 13 of your

13 testimony, right?  Those are the same?

14        A.     Yes, that's correct.

15               MS. SATTER:  Thank you.

16               MS. SODERING:  Just one follow-up

17        based on the testimony that just came out.

18        Is that okay?

19               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any objection,

20        Mr. Stahl?

21               MR. STAHL:  No, I have no objection.

22        R E C R O S S   E X A M I N A T I O N
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1 BY MS. SODERING:

2        Q.     I just wanted to confirm that the

3 company hasn't made any specific commitment to blow

4 through a specific level of savings in the future

5 with -- relating to the quantification that

6 Ms. Satter just referenced in your testimony?

7        A.     I'm not aware of any specific

8 commitment of this table that identifies the savings

9 and costs attributed to ComEd over that time period.

10               MS. SODERING:  Thank you.

11               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Mr. Stahl, do you have

12        anything?

13               MR. STAHL:  No.  I have nothing

14        further.  Thank you.

15               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Okay.  You can step

16        down.  Thank you.

17                   Just so we're clear, I thought it

18        was clear to me, but AG Exhibit 2, which is

19        the Exelon 10-Q filing that made 8/9/2012,

20        that is admitted into evidence.  There was

21        some doubt as to whether it was admitted into

22        evidence, and it's better that we admit it
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1        twice than not at all.

2               MS. SATTER:  And we called that AG

3        Cross Exhibit 2.

4               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Did I not say cross?

5        I meant cross.

6               MR. STAHL:  Admitted by stipulation,

7        correct?

8               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Right.

9               MR. STAHL:  Your Honor, we're just

10        dealing with a logistical issue.  Mr. Fruehe

11        has numerous exhibits.  They are very

12        voluminous.  They are in all of these boxes

13        here apparently, and I don't know if you

14        would like just the testimonies of Mr. Fruehe

15        at this time.  If it becomes necessary to

16        provide you an exhibit, we can do that.

17                   Otherwise, I guess we could bring

18        all these boxes up there if you want to do

19        that.  It's really a great bulk of material,

20        as you can see.  Would you just like the

21        testimony itself at this point?

22               JUDGE SAINSOT:  And then one complete
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1        set over there.

2               MR. STAHL:  We'll drop one complete

3        set over here of everything.

4               MR. RIPPIE:  Your Honors, if I

5        may -- and I apologize for interjecting, but

6        this relates to the matter we discussed

7        yesterday about this.  To the extent that we

8        can certify that the electronic E-Docket

9        copies literally match to the period of the

10        voluminous exhibits, it would save the

11        clerk's office from scanning what is quite

12        literally boxes of pieces of paper.  Is that

13        something that your Honors are willing to

14        entertain?

15               JUDGE SAINSOT:  That's a little scary.

16               MR. RIPPIE:  We only entertain that

17        because we generate the printed copy by

18        printing the PDF.  So we know that the PDF,

19        when printed, should match the PDF that we're

20        filing, because that's how we got the printed

21        paper.  If there are changes made, then of

22        course it won't match and that procedure is
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1        not applicable.

2               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Does anybody have an

3        objection to that?

4                   So for the record, ComEd is

5        certifying that all of the attachments to

6        Mr. Fruehe's testimony that were filed on the

7        E-Docket are the same?

8               MR. RIPPIE:  We'll actually -- if your

9        Honors will permit it as a late filing,

10        probably we'll get it done today.  We'll

11        prepare a formal certification to that effect

12        and file it.

13               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Okay.

14               MR. RIPPIE:  Thank you.

15               JUDGE SAINSOT:  We probably could use

16        the extra physical copies.

17               MR. RIPPIE:  We'll leave them.  But

18        the clerk's office and E-Docket would -- the

19        volume would be huge.

20               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Mr. Fruehe?

21               MR. STAHL:  This is exhibits that

22        Mr. Fruehe supports as part of a compliance
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1        filing that was made back in June.  This is

2        one set.  I'll leave the other three.  This

3        is one complete set.  I doubt that there will

4        be any questions on this, but I'll leave that

5        with you just in case.

6               JUDGE SAINSOT:  So these were already

7        filed?

8               MR. STAHL:  Back in June.

9               JUDGE SAINSOT:  In 11-0721?

10               MR. RIPPIE:  No, in this docket.

11               MR. STAHL:  In this case.

12               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Okay.  This case.

13        That makes it easier.

14               MR. RIPPIE:  And they all have exhibit

15        numbers as well.

16               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Just for the record,

17        there were some requirements that came out of

18        11-0721 stating that ComEd was to do certain

19        things, and this big thing here are

20        Mr. Fruehe's filings in conjunction with

21        that.

22               MR. RIPPIE:  It's a fraction of them
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1        that belong to Mr. Fruehe.  There will be

2        more associated with Mr. Born, Mr. Trpik, and

3        Mr. Tenorio, as well as affidavits from

4        Mr. Trpik, Ms. Blaise, and Mr. Donovan, which

5        we discussed was going to replace

6        the -- Ms. Novy's affidavit.

7               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Okay, Mr. Fruehe.  Do

8        you want to get sworn in?

9                  (Witness sworn.)

10 WHEREUPON:

11                     MARTIN FRUEHE

12 called as a witness herein, having been first duly

13 sworn, deposeth and saith as follows:

14                 E X A M I N A T I O N

15               MR. STAHL:  May I proceed, your Honor?

16               JUDGE SAINSOT:  You may.

17 BY MR. STAHL:

18        Q.     Good afternoon, Mr. Fruehe.  Can you

19 please state your name for the record, spelling the

20 last name for the court reporter?

21        A.     Martin G. Fruehe, F-r-u-e-h-e.

22        Q.     And by whom are you employed,
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1 Mr. Fruehe, and in what capacity?

2        A.     I'm employed by Commonwealth Edison

3 Company as manager of policy.

4        Q.     Mr. Fruehe, it appears you have in

5 front of you a notebook of your testimony and

6 exhibits.  Let me draw your attention first to what

7 has been marked as ComEd Exhibit 3.0 revised.  Do

8 you have that in front of you?

9        A.     I have Exhibit 3.0 in front of me.  I

10 do not have the revised in front of me.

11        Q.     Are you familiar with the revision

12 that was made in your testimony and filed on

13 E-Docket on September 24th?

14        A.     Yes.

15        Q.     And attached to that testimony are

16 ComEd Exhibits 3.1 through 3.9.  Is that correct?

17        A.     That's correct.

18        Q.     And were these exhibits, 3.0

19 through 3.9, prepared or compiled by you under your

20 supervision or direction?

21        A.     Yes, they were.

22        Q.     And if I were to ask you the same
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1 questions in your testimony that appear in 3.0

2 revised, would your answers be the same as they now

3 appear?

4        A.     Yes, they would.

5        Q.     Do you have any corrections at all to

6 make to any of that testimony?

7        A.     No, I do not.

8        Q.     Now, let's turn to the compliance

9 filing.  You are sponsoring ComEd Exhibits 10.1

10 through 10.5.  Is that right?

11        A.     That's correct.

12        Q.     And are the contents of those exhibits

13 true and correct to the best of your knowledge?

14        A.     Yes, they are.

15        Q.     Let's turn now to your rebuttal

16 testimony, which is ComEd Exhibit 13.0.  Was that

17 prepared under your supervision or direction?

18        A.     Yes, it was.

19        Q.     And do you have any corrections to

20 make to that at this time?

21        A.     No, I don't.

22        Q.     And attached to that testimony are
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1 ComEd Exhibits 13.01 through 13.10.  Is that

2 correct?

3        A.     That's correct.

4        Q.     And there is both a public and

5 confidential version of 13.02 and 13.04.  Is that

6 correct?

7        A.     That's correct.

8        Q.     And are the contents of those

9 Exhibits 13.01 through 13.10 true and correct to the

10 best of your knowledge?

11        A.     Yes.

12        Q.     If I were to ask you -- going back to

13 13.0 for a minute, your rebuttal testimony, if I

14 were to ask you the questions set forth therein,

15 would your answers be the same as they appear in

16 that document?

17        A.     Yes, they would.

18        Q.     And finally, Mr. Fruehe, let's turn to

19 your surrebuttal testimony, which is ComEd 19.0.

20 Was that also prepared under your supervision or

21 direction?

22        A.     Yes, it was.
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1        Q.     And do you have any corrections today

2 that you would like to make to that?

3        A.     No.

4        Q.     And is that testimony true and correct

5 to the best of your knowledge?

6        A.     Yes, it is.

7        Q.     And if I were to ask you the same

8 questions today, would your answers be the same?

9        A.     Yes, they would.

10        Q.     And attached to that testimony are

11 Exhibits ComEd 19.1 through 19.8, inclusive.  Is

12 that correct?

13        A.     Yes, that's correct.

14        Q.     And are the contents of those exhibits

15 also true and correct to the best of your knowledge?

16        A.     Yes, they are.

17        Q.     Thank you, Mr. Fruehe.

18               MR. STAHL:  At this time, I have no

19        further questions of Mr. Fruehe.  He is

20        available for cross-examination, and I would

21        move into evidence ComEd Exhibit 3.0 revised

22        through 3.9, ComEd Exhibits 10.1
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1        through 10.5, ComEd Exhibits 13.0

2        through 13.10, and ComEd Exhibits 19.0

3        through 19.8.

4               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any objection?

5                   Hearing none, your motion is

6        granted, Mr. Stahl.

7               MR. STAHL:  Thank you, your Honor.

8               JUDGE SAINSOT:  I just have one

9        question.  What is ComEd Exhibit 10.0?

10               MR. RIPPIE:  There is no 10.0, your

11        Honor.  There was a cover pleading that the

12        clerk's office required before they would

13        accept it on E-Docket that just says -- it's

14        basically a table of contents.

15               JUDGE SAINSOT:  I was just curious.

16               MR. RIPPIE:  It's a very good

17        question.  It's simply a table of contents.

18               MR. SAGONE:  Your Honor, in lieu of

19        cross, the staff has a cross exhibit they'd

20        like to offer into evidence.

21               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Okay.

22               MR. SAGONE:  May I approach?
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1               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Sure.

2               MR. SAGONE:  What I've distributed has

3        been marked for identification as an ICC

4        staff docket and this is a company response

5        to a staff data request number RWB 12.01.  I

6        discussed this with the parties, and my

7        understanding is there's no objection to this

8        coming in.

9                   I did want to ask your Honors:

10        There is reference made to ASC 740 in this as

11        well as internal revenue code Sections 404

12        and 461, and I'm assuming that you wouldn't

13        need copies of the IRC sections, but I wanted

14        to ask whether you needed copies of the ASC,

15        which is -- stands for accounting standard

16        codification.

17               JUDGE SAINSOT:  That one for sure.

18        The IRS is a little easier to get a hold of.

19               MR. SAGONE:  If I e-mailed it to you,

20        would that be okay?

21               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Right, or just attach

22        it to your post trial briefing.
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1                   The ASC is an accounting standard.

2        Does anybody object to that?

3               MR. STAHL:  No, we have no objection.

4               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Let's make it easy.

5        Just attach it.

6               MR. SAGONE:  Then the staff would move

7        for the admittance of ICC Exhibit 1.

8               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any objection?

9               MR. STAHL:  No objection.

10               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Hearing that, ICC

11        staff cross Exhibit 1.0 is entered into

12        evidence.

13          C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N

14 BY MS. LUSSON:

15        Q.     Good afternoon, Mr. Fruehe.

16        A.     Good afternoon.

17        Q.     My name is Karen Lusson for the

18 Attorney General's office.  I just have a few

19 clarifying questions about your treatment of accrued

20 vacation pay and the operating reserves that are

21 deducted from services for purposes of calculating

22 the rate base.
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1                   I want to start out by showing

2 you -- actually, to save some time, I will hand you

3 all three of the exhibits.

4               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Am I right, the staff

5        doesn't have any questions for Mr. Fruehe?

6               MR. SAGONE:  Yes, that's correct.

7 BY MS. LUSSON:

8        Q.     Mr. Fruehe, starting with AG Cross

9 Exhibit 3, this was the -- it's identified as ComEd

10 Exhibit 13.02, work paper five.  Was this prepared

11 by you or under your supervision?

12        A.     Yes, it was.

13        Q.     So this schedule shows the calculation

14 accrued vacation pay for purposes of the adjustment

15 to the operating reserve.  Is that right?

16        A.     There's actually two things on this

17 sheet.  The first column under deferred debit

18 amount, this is the calculation of the deferred

19 credit, which is the same thing as the operating

20 liability and the operating reserve that's also been

21 associated with accrued vacation pay.  That column

22 there is done in accordance with the staff method
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1 that was approved in the last case.  The second

2 column is a similar calculation of a deferred debit

3 amount.

4        Q.     Now, looking at the amount listed as

5 the average jurisdictional balance for 2011, it's

6 correct that the amount listed there is $46 million?

7        A.     Yes, it is.

8        Q.     And this work paper indicates that the

9 company removed $20,741,000, is that correct, as the

10 deferred debit amount?

11        A.     I'm sorry.  When you say the company

12 removed, what do you mean by that?

13        Q.     Does this amount represent the amount

14 representing accrued vacation pay that's not been

15 included in operating expenses and not included in

16 plant, that's either in rate base or accruing AFEDC?

17        A.     Like I said, these are really two

18 different things.  The deferred debit amount is the

19 amount that actually reduces the rate base of the

20 ADIT on there.  A deferred debit amount is actually

21 a separate calculation for an increase to rate base.

22        Q.     So to break down what you said, the
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1 $46 million is the amount that prior to

2 the -- dealing with the debit is the deferred credit

3 amount for the rate base?

4        A.     Yes, that's correct.

5        Q.     Now, is it correct that before any

6 calculation by the company of the deferred income

7 tax effects that are at issue in this case, that the

8 net rate base reduction is $25.3 million?

9        A.     I don't have a calculator right here

10 in front of me, but I suppose if you netted the two,

11 that would be the difference.

12        Q.     Now, looking at AG Cross Exhibit 4,

13 which is the company's response to AG request 3.02,

14 was this response prepared by you or under your

15 supervision?

16        A.     Yes, ma'am, it was.

17        Q.     Now, that response states that the

18 deferred debit shown on ComEd Exhibit 10.3 work

19 paper five, Page 6, relates to accrued vacation paid

20 to be capitalized.  Do you see that?

21        A.     Yes, I do.

22        Q.     Now, if you look at AG Cross
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1 Exhibit 5 -- I've simply marked this as AG Cross

2 Exhibit 5.  This is the work paper that you're

3 referring to in that date of request response?  Is

4 that your --

5        A.     I'm sorry.  There's no five on here.

6        Q.     Yeah, that's Exhibit 5.

7        A.     I'm sorry.  Can you repeat the

8 question here?

9        Q.     AG Cross Exhibit 5 is, in fact, the

10 work paper that you're referencing in your response

11 to AG 3.02?

12        A.     Yes, that's correct.

13        Q.     And just so we're clear, the work

14 paper that you reference in that response also

15 reflects the same numbers that appear in AG Cross

16 Exhibit 3, is that correct?

17        A.     That's correct.

18        Q.     And when you reference those amounts

19 that relate to accrued vacation pay to be

20 capitalized, is it correct that that represents the

21 vacation pay costs that is not included in the

22 accrued reserve that is deducted from the rate base?
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1        A.     It is not -- it's not included in the

2 accrued reserve.

3               MS. LUSSON:  Thank you, Mr. Fruehe.

4        That's all the questions I have.  I would

5        move for the admission of AG Cross

6        Exhibits 3, 4, and 5.

7               MR. STAHL:  No objection.

8               JUDGE SAINSOT:  I have a stupid

9        question.  I don't understand the difference

10        between AG Cross Exhibit 3, at least the top

11        page, and AG Cross Exhibit 5.

12               MS. LUSSON:  Your Honor, there

13        actually is no difference.  But because it

14        referenced that in this response, I wanted to

15        attach it or make it part of the record to be

16        clear he was referencing the same thing as AG

17        Cross Exhibit --

18               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Okay.

19               THE WITNESS:  I couldn't see a

20        difference and it was bugging me.  Any

21        objection?

22               MR. STAHL:  No, none.
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1               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Hearing none, AG Cross

2        Exhibits 3, 4, and 5 are admitted into

3        evidence.  And just for the record, AG Cross

4        Exhibit 3, the first page of AG Cross

5        Exhibit 3, and the only page of AG Cross

6        Exhibit 5 are work papers that Mr. Fruehe

7        prepared.  Is that correct?

8               THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

9               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Regarding adjustment

10        to ComEd's operating reserve for accrued

11        vacation pay.  And then AG Cross Exhibit 4 is

12        a response -- ComEd's response to an AG data

13        request, and the response is to AG requests

14        3.01 through 3.05.

15                   You can continue.  There's no

16        further questions?

17               MS. LUSSON:  I have no further

18        questions, your Honor.  Thank you,

19        Mr. Fruehe.

20               JUDGE SAINSOT:  I have a couple

21        questions.  Does anybody else?

22                   Very briefly, Mr. Fruehe, I just
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1        wanted to ask you about rate case expenses.

2        Am I right that all those bills have been

3        paid now at least?

4               THE WITNESS:  When you say rate case

5        expenses, are you referring to the cost of

6        11-0721?

7               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Right.

8               THE WITNESS:  As far as the initial

9        case goes, yes.  But there's some cost on the

10        hearing that are still coming in.

11               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Right.  But those

12        shouldn't be -- if we're truing up 2011,

13        those should be rate case expenses in a

14        different year, right?

15               THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry.  I see what

16        you're saying.  Yes, the rate case expenses

17        that we've included in the revenue

18        requirement in 12-0321 related to Docket

19        11-0721 have, in fact, been paid.

20               JUDGE SAINSOT:  And are there any

21        bills in the record regarding the rate case

22        expense?
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1               THE WITNESS:  Subject to check, I

2        don't think they were actually entered into

3        the record.  We had some discovery that we

4        provided in the bills, but I don't believe

5        they got entered into the record.

6               JUDGE SAINSOT:  That's all the

7        questions I have for that.  I have one more

8        set of very brief questions.

9                   On Page 116 your rebuttal, you

10        mentioned a difference in the way that ComEd

11        is calculating this -- making calculations

12        pursuant to this new statute and the way

13        staff is.  If you can, I'd like to know what

14        that difference is.  It may be too

15        complicated to explain, especially to a

16        lawyer.

17               THE WITNESS:  Give me a few minutes to

18        get over there.

19                   I have the page of my rebuttal

20        here in front of me.  This is in regards to

21        the original cost findings that I have here.

22               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Am I wrong?  Maybe it
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1        was the surrebuttal.

2                   No, I don't think that's it.  If I

3        can't find it, then I'll just skip it.

4               MR. STAHL:  What are you looking for,

5        your Honor?

6               JUDGE SAINSOT:  He did testify

7        somewhere, probably in the rebuttal, about

8        there's a difference between the way staff is

9        making calculations on the EIMA regarding the

10        EIMA and the way ComEd is doing it, and I

11        just wanted him to be able to elaborate,

12        because he didn't say what that difference

13        was.

14               MR. STAHL:  It's the debt I think of

15        the three bond issuances.

16               MR. RIPPIE:  That's what it is.

17               JUDGE SAINSOT:  The debt expense?

18               MR. STAHL:  It's because of the

19        amortization period.  It's the difference in

20        the amortization period perhaps.

21               THE WITNESS:  I'm familiar with what

22        he's referring to.  What happened here is
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1        ComEd, for its calculation of the

2        amortization with certain expenses, used the

3        amounts right from the Illinois Form 21,

4        which is reported every year.

5                   What staff had done was to instead

6        of just taking that number, they actually

7        calculated an annual amortization.  And for

8        the most part, we were very, very close,

9        within less than one percent I believe.  So

10        the staff's calculations were very close to

11        ours.

12                   There was one issue though that

13        had an incorrect amortization end date

14        associated with it, and staff calculated it

15        based on that number not knowing that it was

16        incorrect, and came up with a different

17        number.  And Mr. McNally mentioned that in

18        his testimony.

19                   In my surrebuttal, I discussed how

20        that was -- in the rebuttal, that was a ComEd

21        mistake and an entry mistake in the Form 21.

22        But to limit the issues in the case, we just
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1        accepted the staff's numbers as it pertained

2        to the record.

3               JUDGE SAINSOT:  I wasn't sure if it

4        was because of not familiarity with the

5        formula rate or what.  It was a little vague.

6                   And for the record, Illinois Form

7        21 is?

8               THE WITNESS:  It's a document we file

9        each year with the Commission with operating

10        statistics and financial statistics.

11               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Thank you.  Anything,

12        Mr. Stahl?

13               MR. STAHL:  Can we have two minutes,

14        your Honor?

15               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Sure.

16               MR. STAHL:  There's something I'd like

17        to clarify.

18               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Go ahead.

19                   (Whereupon, a discussion was had

20                    off the record.)

21               MR. STAHL:  Very briefly on redirect,

22        your Honor.
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1       R E D I R E C T   E X A M I N A T I O N

2 BY MR. STAHL:

3        Q.     Mr. Fruehe, let me refer you to Cross

4 Exhibit 5.  I believe you testified in response to

5 one of Ms. Lusson's questions that the amount

6 deducted from rate base on account of the accrued

7 vacation pay is the difference between the 46027 and

8 the 20741 numbers shown on Line 16.  Is that

9 correct?

10        A.     That's correct.  That's the net effect

11 on the rate base.

12        Q.     Now, that being the case, the company

13 calculated the ADIT on the reserve based on the full

14 46027 number.  Is that also correct?

15        A.     That's correct.

16        Q.     Why is it appropriate to calculate

17 that ADIT on the full 46027 as opposed to on the

18 difference between those two numbers on Line 16?

19        A.     Because there's only accumulated

20 deferred income taxes, or ADIT, associated with the

21 deferred credit amount or the operating liability.

22 There is no ADIT associated with the deferred credit
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1 amount.

2        Q.     And the ADIT number that you have

3 added back to rate base appears on Line 18 of this

4 work paper.  Is that correct?

5        A.     That's correct.

6        Q.     Does that number appear in the

7 company's FERC Form 1?

8        A.     Not that exact number.  There is a

9 slight methodology difference that we perform based

10 upon the order in the last case, but it's very close

11 to that number.

12               MR. STAHL:  Thank you.  I have nothing

13        further.

14               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Anything, Ms. Lusson?

15               MS. LUSSON:  No, no questions.

16               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Thank you, Mr. Fruehe.

17        You can step down.

18                   These are the boxes -- just two

19        boxes.  We'll leave these with the court

20        reporter.  These are all of the other

21        remaining exhibits to Mr. Fruehe's various

22        testimonies.
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1               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Actually, I think you

2        can just leave them when you go.  We'll put

3        them in our little storage room.

4               MR. STAHL:  In your big storage room.

5               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Who's next?

6        Mr. Bridal, good afternoon.

7               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Good afternoon,

8        Mr. Bridal.  Can you see me?

9               THE WITNESS:  Yes, ma'am.

10               MR. STAHL:  And can you see Judges

11        Kimbrel and Jorgenson?

12               THE WITNESS:  I can see Judge

13        Jorgenson, but not Judge Kim.

14               JUDGE SAINSOT:  And can you see

15        Ms. Lusson below?

16               THE WITNESS:  Yes, your Honor.

17                   (Witness sworn.)

18 WHEREUPON:

19                    RICHARD BRIDAL

20 called as a witness herein, having been first duly

21 sworn, deposeth and saith as follows:

22                 E X A M I N A T I O N
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1               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Staff, you can

2        proceed.

3 BY MR. SAGONE:

4        Q.     Good afternoon, Mr. Bridal.

5        A.     Good afternoon.

6        Q.     Would you state your full name for the

7 record and spell your last name?

8        A.     Richard W. Bridal II, spelled

9 B-r-i-d-a-l.

10        Q.     And who is your employer and what is

11 your business address?

12        A.     Illinois Commerce Commission, 527 East

13 Capital Avenue, Springfield, Illinois 62701.

14        Q.     What is your position at the Illinois

15 Commerce Commission?

16        A.     I am an accountant in the accounting

17 department of the financial analysis division.

18        Q.     Do you have before you a document

19 which has been marked for identification as ICC

20 staff Exhibit 2.0, which is entitled:  The Direct

21 Testimony of Richard W. Bridal, II, which consists

22 of a cover page, a table of contents, nine pages of
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1 testimony, and Schedule 2.01, which was filed on

2 E-Docket July 17th, 2012?

3        A.     I do.

4        Q.     Do you also have before you a document

5 which has been marked as identification as ICC staff

6 Exhibit 7.0, which is entitled:  The Rebuttal

7 Testimony of Richard W. Bridal, II, which consists

8 of a cover page, table of contents, 13 pages of

9 testimony, and Attachments A through C, which was

10 filed on E-Docket on September 11th, 2012?

11        A.     I do.

12        Q.     Did you prepare those documents for

13 presentation in this matter?

14        A.     Yes.

15        Q.     Do you have any corrections to make to

16 ICC staff Exhibit 2.0 or ICC staff Exhibit 7.0?

17        A.     No.

18        Q.     Is the information contained in ICC

19 staff Exhibit 2.0 and in ICC staff Exhibit 7.0 true

20 and correct to the best of your knowledge?

21        A.     Yes.

22        Q.     If I were to ask you the same
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1 questions as set forth in ICC staff Exhibit 2.0 and

2 in ICC staff Exhibit 7.0, would your responses be

3 the same today?

4        A.     Yes.

5               MR. SAGONE:  Your Honors, I would move

6        for admission into evidence ICC staff

7        Exhibit 2.0 and ICC staff Exhibit 7.0,

8        including all schedules and attachments, and

9        tender Mr. Bridal for cross-examination.

10               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any objection?

11               MR. RIPPIE:  No, your Honor.

12               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Hearing none, your

13        motion is granted.  ICC staff Exhibit 2.0 and

14        attachments and ICC staff Exhibit 7.0 and

15        attachments are entered into evidence.

16          C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N

17 BY MS. LUSSON:

18        Q.     Good afternoon, Mr. Bridal.

19        A.     Good afternoon.

20        Q.     My name is Karen Lusson.  I'm from the

21 Attorney General's office.

22               MS. LUSSON:  Your Honors, if I could,
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1        I want to pass out an exhibit that I believe

2        Mr. Bridal has in his possession.  It's an

3        exhibit that is already attached to

4        Mr. Effron's testimony as AG AARP Exhibit

5        4.2.  Just for purposes of reading along,

6        I'll hand a copy to counsel.

7               JUDGE SAINSOT:  So this is not for

8        entry into evidence?  This is just to follow

9        along?

10               MS. LUSSON:  Exactly.

11 BY MS. LUSSON:

12        Q.     It appears, Mr. Bridal, in your

13 rebuttal testimony you address the issue of vacation

14 pay as operating reserve and what is the proper

15 methodology for purposes of reflecting that amount

16 in rate base.  So specifically, I'm referencing your

17 testimony at Page 13.

18               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Is this direct

19        testimony?

20               MS. LUSSON:  I'm sorry.  Rebuttal.

21 BY MS. LUSSON:

22        Q.     Now, if you could look at the exhibit



L.A. COURT REPORTERS, LLC (312) 419-9292

177

1 that's been handed to you, which is attached again

2 as AG AARP Exhibit 4.2, this is a staff schedule

3 16.07R from docket 11-0721.  And as I understand it,

4 this was part of staff Cross Exhibit 1 and is

5 attached to Mr. Effron's testimony.

6                   Now, have you seen this exhibit

7 before?

8        A.     Yes, I have.

9        Q.     And is it correct that this was

10 attached as part of the evidentiary record in Docket

11 11-0721 as schedule 16.07R?

12        A.     That's my understanding, yes.

13        Q.     Now, if you look at Page 1 of that

14 schedule, it shows the calculation of the deferred

15 taxes related to accrued vacation pay.  And

16 specifically referencing Line 6, it indicates that

17 the deferred taxes are calculated by applying the

18 combined tax rate to the rate based deduction for

19 accrued vacation pay.  Do you see that?

20        A.     Yes, I do.

21        Q.     Would you read that as shown in this

22 calculation that the deferred tax asset is directly
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1 proportional to the accrued vacation pay itself?  So

2 for example, if the balance of accrued vacation pay

3 were higher, then the deferred tax offset would also

4 be higher?

5        A.     Yes.

6        Q.     And conversely, if the balance of

7 accrued vacation pay were lower, the deferred tax

8 offset would also be lower?

9        A.     Yes.

10               MS. LUSSON:  Thank you, Mr. Bridal.  I

11        have no further questions.

12               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any redirect?

13               MR. RIPPIE:  We have a couple minutes

14        reserved as well.  But your Honor, if I

15        could -- if your Honors would indulge me for

16        about 90 seconds, I'll determine whether we

17        have to pursue it given the answers earlier

18        given.

19               THE WITNESS:  Your Honor, if I may

20        step away for just a moment.

21               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Sure.  Why don't we

22        just take a five-minute break so that
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1        everybody can just recoup.  Just five

2        minutes, so ten after.

3                   (Whereupon, a short recess was

4                    had.)

5               JUDGE SAINSOT:  We're back on the

6        record.  Mr. Rippie, proceed.

7               MR. RIPPIE:  Thank you.

8          C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N

9 BY MR. RIPPIE:

10        Q.     Good afternoon, Mr. Bridal.  How are

11 you?

12        A.     Good afternoon.

13        Q.     One question on the exhibit that you

14 had in front of you previously, AG AARP Exhibit 4.2,

15 am I correct that the deferred debit does not appear

16 at any place on that schedule?

17        A.     That's correct.

18        Q.     If I could ask you to look at staff

19 Exhibit 7, please, your rebuttal testimony, and in

20 particular to look at your recommendation on lines

21 93 through 125.  That's Pages 5 and 6.

22        A.     That was Line 90 --
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1        Q.     96 through 125 of staff Exhibit 7.

2        A.     Okay.  I'm there.  Thank you.

3        Q.     My question concerns the granularity

4 of your recommendation, Mr. Bridal.  Is it your

5 intention to request that the company, in its annual

6 update filing, provide information at a different

7 level of granularity than are required by the annual

8 report called for by 16-108.5B of the act?

9               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Can you repeat that

10        question again, Mr. Rippie?  I'm sorry.

11               MR. RIPPIE:  Sure.

12 BY MR. RIPPIE:

13        Q.     You understand the investment could be

14 looked at as a total number or by generic type, or

15 it could be broken down by the portion allocated to

16 the smart provisions versus not, and you can go on a

17 level of granularity all the way down to looking at

18 an individual nut or bolt or connection or wire.

19                   So my question to you, sir, is:

20 Is it your intention and recommendation to be

21 requesting that the Commission order ComEd to

22 provide in its annual rate filing that information
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1 at a level of granularity greater than is required

2 in the annual report specified in Section 16-108.5B

3 of the act?

4        A.     The level of detail I would like to be

5 recorded on the annual formula update is a level

6 provided by the company and its response to staff

7 date of request, RWB 9.08, attachment number one.

8 That date of request response attachment is attached

9 to my rebuttal testimony as Attachment B.

10        Q.     Bear with me just a second.

11                   Since you didn't exactly answer

12 the question the same way I asked it, I take it that

13 you don't have an opinion on whether Attachment B is

14 consistent with the level of detail called for by

15 Section 16-108.5B?

16        A.     I do not have a copy of the act in

17 front of me here.  I just have the reference that's

18 made in my testimony.  As I sit here right now, I

19 cannot tell you the exact level of detail that's

20 called for in that section of the act.

21        Q.     Do you have a particular methodology

22 in mind as to how you would suggest -- strike that,
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1 please.

2                   Let's look at the second page of

3 that data request response for just a moment, and

4 let's look, for the sake of argument, at Line 2.

5        A.     Okay.

6        Q.     Do I interpret your recommendation as

7 being that you would expect a company to identify

8 whether the replacement in that example of Ridgeland

9 Cable is an EIMA project or not?

10        A.     Yes.

11        Q.     And in order to do that, wouldn't the

12 company have to make a determination as to whether

13 or not that project would have been completed absent

14 EIMA?

15        A.     I believe the company may be required

16 to make that determination.  However, from reviewing

17 this response, it appears that such a determination

18 is indeed possible.

19        Q.     Then I only have one other question.

20 Would it satisfy your request if, with respect to

21 those projects where the engineers determine it is

22 not possible, they so state?
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1        A.     I don't know.  As I sit here, I do not

2 know.

3        Q.     Fair enough.  Thank you, sir.  I

4 appreciate it.

5        A.     Thank you.

6               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Anybody else for

7        cross?

8               MR. SAGONE:  Do you want us to call

9        you, Rick?

10               THE WITNESS:  Just real quick, yes.

11               JUDGE SAINSOT:  So you need a few

12        minutes?

13               MR. SAGONE:  Just a few, yes.

14                   (Whereupon, a discussion was had

15                    off the record.)

16               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Back on the record.

17               MR. SAGONE:  No redirect, your Honor.

18               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Thank you, Mr. Bridal.

19        You can step down.

20                   Last but not least, we have

21        Mr. Trpik, right?

22               MR. JOHNSON:  Correct.  And may I
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1        approach with copies?

2               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Sure.  What are we

3        calling the affidavits?

4               MR. JOHNSON:  One of the affidavits is

5        ComEd Exhibit 10.7.  The other does not have

6        an exhibit number, so I was just going to

7        reference it by date.

8               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Why don't we call it

9        ComEd Exhibit 10.8.  Is that taken?

10               MR. JOHNSON:  I think it's taken.

11               MR. RIPPIE:  We could call it ComEd

12        10.14.

13               JUDGE SAINSOT:  That works for me.

14               MR. RIPPIE:  That's the next number in

15        the series.

16               JUDGE SAINSOT:  And these are

17        compliance filings from the final order in

18        11-0721.  Are they both --

19               MR. RIPPIE:  Yes, your Honor.  There

20        were two sets of them, one on the 13th and

21        one on the 19th.  10.01 through 10.13 were in

22        the 13th, and the newly-numbered ones were
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1        filed on the 19th.

2               JUDGE SAINSOT:  You can proceed.

3               MR. JOHNSON:  I'll begin with entering

4        my appearance for the record.  On behalf of

5        Commonwealth Edison Company, Mark R. Johnson

6        with Eimer Stahl, LLP; 224 South Michigan

7        Avenue, Suite 1100, Chicago 60604.

8                   Your Honors, before I proceed,

9        would you like to swear in the witness?

10                   (Witness sworn.)

11 WHEREUPON:

12                     JOSEPH TRPIK

13 called as a witness herein, having been first duly

14 sworn, deposeth and saith as follows:

15                 E X A M I N A T I O N

16 MR. JOHNSON:

17        Q.     Good afternoon, Mr. Trpik.  Would you

18 please state and spell your full name for the

19 record?

20        A.     Joseph R. Trpik, T-r-p-i-k, Jr.

21        Q.     And by whom are you employed?

22        A.     Commonwealth Edison.
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1        Q.     And what is your position there?

2        A.     Senior vice president and chief

3 financial officer and treasurer.

4        Q.     I provided you with two documents, one

5 of which includes attachments.  Are these documents

6 that are before you what are previously designated

7 direct and rebuttal testimony?

8        A.     Yes, they are.

9        Q.     Let's first turn to your direct

10 testimony, which has been designated as ComEd

11 Exhibit 4.0, which constitutes five pages of

12 narrative testimony.  Is that correct?

13        A.     It does.

14        Q.     And Mr. Trpik, did you prepare or

15 cause to be prepared under your direct supervision

16 and control ComEd Exhibit 4.0?

17        A.     I did.

18        Q.     And are there any corrections that you

19 need to make to ComEd Exhibit 4.0?

20        A.     There are not.

21        Q.     And if I were to ask you the same

22 questions as appearing in ComEd Exhibit 4.0 today,
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1 would you give these same answers?

2        A.     I would.

3        Q.     Turning next to your rebuttal

4 testimony, which is marked as ComEd Exhibit 14.0,

5 and includes 14 pages of narrative testimony as well

6 as Exhibits 14.1, 14.2, and 14.3, these exhibits

7 constitute your rebuttal testimony.  Is that

8 correct?

9        A.     They do.

10        Q.     And Mr. Trpik, did you prepare or

11 provide to be prepared under your direct supervision

12 and control ComEd Exhibit 14.0?

13        A.     I did.

14        Q.     And are there any additions or

15 corrections that you need to make to ComEd

16 Exhibit 14.0?

17        A.     Yes, there are.

18        Q.     And can you identify those corrections

19 for us, please?

20        A.     Page 9 of 14 Line l88, the reference

21 to docket 11-0279 should be a reference to docket

22 11-0282.  In that same line --
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1               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Where are you,

2        Mr. Trpik?  What line again?

3               THE WITNESS:  188 on Page 9 of 14.

4               MR. JOHNSON:  In his rebuttal

5        testimony.

6               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Page 914?

7               THE WITNESS:  Page 9 to 14.

8               JUDGE SAINSOT:  I thought that was a

9        little lengthy.

10               MR. JOHNSON:  You got the two changes

11        on the records.  Is that correct?

12               THE WITNESS:  I did not make the

13        second change.  The second change on that

14        same line is the reference to Exhibit 12.0E.

15        It should be changed to be 12.0G.

16               JUDGE SAINSOT:  G, like good?

17               THE WITNESS:  G, like good.

18 BY MR. JOHNSON:

19        Q.     And if I were to ask you the same

20 questions as appearing in ComEd Exhibit 14.0 today,

21 would you give these same answers today?

22        A.     Yes.
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1                   (Whereupon, a discussion was had

2                    off the record.)

3               MR. JOHNSON:  Then your Honors, in

4        addition to the pre-filed testimony, as we

5        discussed earlier, we have the two affidavits

6        previously executed and submitted by

7        Mr. Trpik, and I'll just identify those for

8        the record.

9                   That is ComEd Exhibit 10.7, which

10        was filed on June 13th, 2012, and the second

11        affidavit that we're marking as ComEd

12        Exhibit 10.14, which is also an affidavit by

13        Mr. Trpik submitted on June 19th, 2012.

14               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any objection to the

15        admission of ComEd Exhibits 4.0, 10.07,

16        10.14, and 14.0 into evidence?  Hearing none,

17        your motion is granted.

18               MR. JOHNSON:  Thank you.  With that, I

19        tender Mr. Trpik for cross-examination.

20               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Who do we have?  AG,

21        and that's it, right?

22          C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N
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1 BY MS. SATTER:

2        Q.     Good afternoon, Mr. Trpik.

3        A.     Good afternoon.

4        Q.     I just have a couple questions for

5 you.  Starting with your rebuttal testimony, all my

6 questions will be with your rebuttal testimony.

7               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Ms. Satter, I don't

8        think your microphone is on.

9               MS. SATTER:  Is that better?

10               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Why don't you get it a

11        little closer to you.

12               MS. SATTER:  Is that better?

13               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Yes.

14 BY MS. SATTER:

15        Q.     At Page 9, Lines 197 through about

16 200, you say ComEd is also providing a list breaking

17 down the costs into categories.  My question to you

18 is:  Is the list in your Exhibits 14.1 and 14.2?

19        A.     Could you present that to me so I can

20 confirm?  I don't have it in front of me.

21        Q.     Oh, I'm sorry.

22        A.     Yes, they are.
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1        Q.     If you recall -- if not I can show you

2 the document again -- 14.1 doesn't indicate that the

3 identified costs are associated with the merger,

4 does it?

5        A.     Can I just have the list?

6                   14.1 is titled merger costs by

7 FERC account, but the lines themselves do not say

8 the word merger individually.

9               MR. JOHNSON:  Your Honor, if I may

10        just ask the witness to double check if any

11        exhibits are attached to the testimony?

12               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Sure.  What is 14.1?

13        Maybe that's a good way to start.

14               MS. SATTER:  14.1 is identified as a

15        Document 12-0321, ComEd Exhibit 14.1,

16        Commonwealth Edison merger costs by FERC

17        account, December 31st, 2011.

18               MR. JOHNSON:  Judge Kimbrel, these are

19        Mr. Trpik's exhibits.  I'm just giving those

20        back to you.

21               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Okay.  You can

22        proceed.
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1 BY MS. SATTER:

2        Q.     Do you have 14.1 now?

3        A.     I have it.

4        Q.     So is it correct that these costs were

5 included in the various FERC accounts that are

6 indicated on the left-hand-side?

7        A.     That is correct.

8        Q.     And that either you or somebody else

9 in the company identified them as being associated

10 with the merger?

11        A.     That is correct.

12        Q.     Now, are you familiar with -- the

13 request to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

14 to approve the merger between Exelon and

15 Constellation?

16        A.     I am familiar.  However, I was not

17 directly involved with that request.

18        Q.     Is it correct that FERC considered

19 transmission rates in connection with the merger; in

20 other words, the affect of the merger on

21 transmission rates?

22        A.     Not being party to that, I don't know
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1 if I can affirmatively say what the FERC considered.

2        Q.     Are you familiar with the order

3 entered by the FERC approving the merger?

4        A.     I can't say I specifically read it or

5 reviewed it.

6        Q.     You cannot -- I'm sorry?

7        A.     I cannot.

8        Q.     Do you know how the FERC treated

9 merger costs and savings?

10               MR. JOHNSON:  Your Honor, I believe

11        he's answered a few times now that he's not

12        familiar with the FERC order proceeding, so I

13        don't know that the witness has anything

14        further to say on this.

15               JUDGE SAINSOT:  How could he know what

16        the FERC did if he doesn't know anything

17        about what the FERC ordered?

18               MS. SATTER:  Well, because he's

19        testifying on how merger costs and savings

20        should be treated, and I thought he might

21        have an idea of how it was treated in other

22        subsidiaries that are his sister
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1        subsidiaries.

2               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Why don't you just

3        rephrase the question.

4 BY MS. SATTER:

5        Q.     Do you know -- Mr. Trpik, do you know

6 how merger costs and savings are to be treated in

7 determining Commonwealth Edison's transmission

8 rates?

9        A.     I'm sorry.  I'm not familiar with that

10 as it relates to -- as it relates to this merger,

11 no, I am not familiar.

12               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Mr. Trpik, you've got

13        to speak up a little bit.

14               THE WITNESS:  Sorry.  Okay.

15               MS. SATTER:  I don't have any other

16        questions, but I would request that the

17        Commission take administrative notice of the

18        FERC order approving the merger of Exelon and

19        Constellation.  That was one of the

20        preconditions to the merger going forward,

21        and I've got copies of the order.

22               MR. RIPPIE:  Your Honor, an order of
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1        the federal regulatory Commission in our view

2        is akin to an order of -- it's a

3        quasi-judicial order.  It's reported.  I

4        don't think it's appropriate to take notice

5        of that anymore than it would be appropriate

6        to take notice of a ruling of a court or of

7        another sister agency.

8                   I also don't think it's necessary.

9        It can be cited in any Attorney General's

10        office.  It's a decision of FERC.  If she

11        wants access to the order, we don't have a

12        problem substantively.  It's a matter of

13        whether that's something you take notice of

14        as if it is evidence, as opposed to

15        acknowledging that it is an order of the

16        federal government's tribunal in charge of

17        energy regulation.

18               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Well, what are you

19        going to use it for?  What relevance does it

20        have?

21               MS. SATTER:  Well, it's very relevant

22        to how merger costs and savings are treated
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1        on the Commission side of Commonwealth

2        Edison's operation, and it's also relevant to

3        how this precise merger was presented to the

4        federal government when the federal

5        government was evaluating it for approval,

6        and how the federal government resolved the

7        issues.

8               JUDGE SAINSOT:  So what she's saying

9        is she's using it fashionably.

10               MR. RIPPIE:  In that case, Mr. Johnson

11        could probably address it.  But that's going

12        to open a very serious question both about

13        the fairness of requesting notice of that as

14        factual evidence, again, when we don't have a

15        witness here to respond to that, and frankly

16        the relevance of it.

17                   The order is what it is.  It

18        states the findings of FERC, and it states,

19        to the extent that FERC made them public, why

20        they made that finding.  It could be cited

21        for that purpose, but it isn't evidence, and

22        it's not appropriate to drag that entire
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1        proceeding into this proceeding.

2               MS. SATTER:  Your Honor, I only -- I

3        absolutely agree.  The order speaks for

4        itself.  I just am trying to be consistent

5        with your request on administrative notice,

6        and I'm happy to cite it.  I actually agree

7        with Mr. Rippie that I think citing a FERC

8        order is appropriate for what the FERC order

9        says.

10               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Then it would not have

11        to be a factual thing, right?

12               MS. SATTER:  I don't quite understand

13        that distinction.  I'm sorry.  The FERC made

14        a decision.  It issued findings, and it has

15        certain requirements.  And whether those are

16        factual or not, I can't make that

17        distinction.  That's what's in the order.

18               MR. RIPPIE:  That's not what I mean by

19        factual.  And we're happy to -- to the extent

20        we have no objection to it being used for

21        that purpose, we will stipulate to it being

22        used for that purpose.



L.A. COURT REPORTERS, LLC (312) 419-9292

198

1                   By factual, I mean if, for

2        example, hypothetically, the order of the

3        FERC were to say that Mr. -- I can't say

4        Mr. Smith, can I?  That's not a hypothetical

5        in this case.  Mr. Jones testified that the

6        sun rose in the north, not the east.  The

7        fact that FERC recited that testimony can't

8        be used as evidence of the matter asserted,

9        that the sun rises in the north, not the

10        east.  But it absolutely can be cited for

11        what it is, what it says, what its rulings

12        were.  It's just like a court could be.

13               JUDGE SAINSOT:  I think Mr. Rippie has

14        got an excellent point, and that is if we

15        have Mr. Jones -- if we say that for the

16        proposition that Mr. Jones testified to blah,

17        blah, blah, A, it's hearsay; B, Mr. Jones is

18        not here to be cross examined or rejuvenated.

19        So it's really not fair in a due process

20        sense to cite it that way.

21               MS. SATTER:  You know, I can't sit

22        here right now and say I'm going to cite A,
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1        B, C, and D for this case.  This is an order

2        for a federal regulatory Commission.  If

3        administrative notice is not necessary, then

4        that's fine.  I absolutely agree the order

5        speaks for itself.  As far as how I'm going

6        to use it --

7               JUDGE SAINSOT:  You can only use it as

8        citing an order.  You can't use it as

9        Mr. Jones testified that blah, blah, blah,

10        and that therefore it's a fact.

11                   But since you intend to cite it,

12        making those copies was not a waste of time.

13        We can still use them.  So continue.  We are

14        just not entering them into evidence because

15        it's an order.

16               MS. SATTER:  Because it's not

17        necessary.

18               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Right.

19 BY MS. SATTER:

20        Q.     Mr. Trpik, do you know whether

21 Commonwealth Edison's transmission rates are set

22 pursuant to a formula?
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1        A.     Yes, they are.

2        Q.     And is that formula administered by

3 the FERC?

4        A.     Yes, it is.

5        Q.     Is that formula similar to the formula

6 in Illinois in that costs that are identified on the

7 FERC Form 1 are then incorporated into the

8 transmission rate?

9        A.     Yes, they are.

10        Q.     So to the extent that there are

11 savings on the transmission side, they will be

12 reflected in the revenue requirement on the

13 transmission side, right?

14        A.     Yes, they would.

15        Q.     And to the extent that there are costs

16 on the transmission side, they would be reflected on

17 the transmission side?

18        A.     That's correct.

19        Q.     Except to the extent that the FERC

20 might have imposed a condition on either side of

21 that equation?

22        A.     There are some specific rulings
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1 applied to costs in general, the cost occurred by

2 ComEd and reflected on the FERC form regarding the

3 formula.

4               MS. SATTER:  Thank you.  I have no

5        further questions.

6               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any redirect?

7               MR. JOHNSON:  None.

8               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Mr. Trpik, you can

9        step down.  Thank you.

10                   So we're going to do ComEd's stuff

11        first -- excuse me.  ComEd's very valuable

12        evidence I meant.

13               MR. RIPPIE:  We could, your Honor.

14        But if -- I know the staff is ready, and

15        we're going to try to work out assigning

16        numbers to those couple that didn't have

17        numbers, so if you could take staff first.

18               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Let's get Mr. Trpik

19        organized here.

20                   So we're going with the staff

21        first?

22               MS. CARDONI:  Judge, before moving our
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1        testimony and schedules into the record,

2        pursuant to your ruling yesterday, staff

3        would ask for administrative notice of the

4        following items, which are mentioned in our

5        testimony.

6                   The first is the order in 11-0721,

7        and also the final order in 10-0467.  We also

8        cite to some financial accounting standards

9        codifications ASC 740.  And I think that's

10        what Mr. Sigone is going to provide to you.

11               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Is that correct,

12        Mr. Sigone, just for the record, that ASC

13        thing?

14               MR. SAGONE:  Yes, can I e-mail that to

15        your Honor?

16               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Or just attach it to

17        the brief.  You don't need administrative

18        notice on that.

19               MS. CARDONI:  And then we also Cite to

20        a couple of Internal Revenue Code Sections

21        404 and 461, but my understanding is those

22        are accessible to you, and those are fully
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1        cited in the testimony.

2               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Right.  That's fine.

3        We don't need that.

4               MS. CARDONI:  We also cite to ComEd's

5        verification for rehearing in docket number

6        12-0298.

7               JUDGE SAINSOT:  What is that case?

8               MR. RIPPIE:  It is the AMI plan and

9        proceeding.

10               JUDGE SAINSOT:  The petition for

11        rehearing?

12               MS. CARDONI:  Application for

13        rehearing, yes.

14               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Application for

15        rehearing in that case.  Are you citing that

16        for facts or what?

17               MR. SAGONE:  It was actually cited for

18        some recommendations that Mr. Bridal had that

19        ComEd had just made some adjustments, which

20        it's my I understanding ComEd did that on

21        rebuttal.

22               JUDGE SAINSOT:  So you're just showing
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1        what ComEd did -- why ComEd did something?

2               MR. SAGONE:  Essentially what

3        was -- the testimony concerned in their

4        application for rehearing, ComEd noted that

5        they were changing the appointment schedule,

6        and that would have a corresponding effect on

7        schedules.  So that was -- those were all

8        updated, was my understanding.

9               MR. RIPPIE:  The updates were done,

10        your Honor.  So at the risk of trying to

11        again cut this short and solve the problem,

12        we're happy to stipulate to that.  We have no

13        objection to the accounting standards, and

14        the rest are orders that I don't know that we

15        need to take notice of because they're

16        orders, not evidence.

17               JUDGE SAINSOT:  It wouldn't be fair at

18        this point for us to take a FERC order and

19        say we don't need to take administrative

20        notice of that.  But the two orders that I

21        was extensively involved in, you do, and one

22        that Judge Kimball was involved in.
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1                   So you don't need to do anything

2        regarding 11-0721 or 100467.  And Mr. Rippie

3        is going to stipulate to the petition for

4        rehearing in 12-0298?

5               MR. RIPPIE:  Yes, that's correct, your

6        Honor.

7               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Anything else?

8               MS. CARDONI:  There's one other item,

9        which I also understand that ComEd will

10        stipulate to, and that's that in -- there's

11        an exhibit from docket 10-0467.  It's ComEd

12        Exhibit 67.2, Appendix G.  Staff witness

13        Rockrohr takes some of those numbers and uses

14        them in this -- a column of those numbers and

15        uses them in his testimony in this docket.

16        And I understand ComEd will stipulate to the

17        accuracy of those numbers.

18               MR. RIPPIE:  That is correct, your

19        Honor.  That concerns the loss studies that

20        were the subject of Mr. Rockrohr and were

21        Born's testimony, whether the parties have

22        essentially reached an agreement.
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1               JUDGE SAINSOT:  And that's the factual

2        foundation?

3               MS. CARDONI:  Yes.

4               MR. RIPPIE:  Part of the factual

5        foundation.

6               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Well, not the whole

7        thing naturally.  So nobody has a problem

8        with taking administrative notice of this

9        document from 10-0467, which was ComEd

10        exhibit what?

11               MS. CARDONI:  67.2, Appendix G.

12               MR. RIPPIE:  Your Honor, we would

13        prefer that it be reflected as a stipulation

14        rather than a notice.

15               JUDGE SAINSOT:  A stipulation.  Sure.

16        So if it's a stipulation, nobody else has any

17        objection?

18                   Hearing none, your motion to admit

19        this stipulation regarding ComEd Exhibit 67.2

20        is entered in the record, or you're going to

21        get it to me, or what?

22               MS. CARDONI:  Sure.
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1               JUDGE SAINSOT:  And just for the

2        record, that supplies -- that provides some

3        factual basis for an ongoing situation in

4        rate cases.

5                   Anything else.

6               MS. CARDONI:  We have some evidence to

7        put into the record.

8               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Oh, evidence.

9               MS. CARDONI:  At this point, staff

10        would move for the admission of evidence of

11        what has been marked as ICC staff

12        Exhibit 1.0, the direct testimony of

13        Verma C. Jones consisting of a cover page, a

14        table of contents, ten pages of questions and

15        answers, and schedules 1.01 FY to 1.10 FY,

16        1.01 RY, to 1.07 RY, and 1.10 RY.  And that

17        was filed on E-Docket July 17th.

18                   We'd also move the admission into

19        evidence of what has been marked as staff

20        Exhibit 6.0.  That is rebuttal testimony of

21        Ms. Jones, and also consists of schedules

22        6.01 FY through 6.09 FY, 6.01 RY through
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1        6.07 RY, 6.10 RY, and 6.11, as well as

2        Attachments A and B.  And this was filed on

3        E-Docket on September 11th, 2012.

4                   We'd like to admit both of these

5        pieces via affidavit, that's the affidavit of

6        Verma C. Jones that was filed on E-Docket

7        this morning, September 25th, and is marked

8        as staff Exhibit 6.1.

9                   Judge, would you like me to go

10        through all of it?

11               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Right.  Are we going

12        to have a hardcopy to file?

13               MS. CARDONI:  Of our testimony?

14               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Yeah.

15               MS. CARDONI:  I believe we already did

16        that.  We've got binders.

17               JUDGE SAINSOT:  I meant the one for

18        the file.

19               MS. CARDONI:  I think we have four.

20               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Okay.  You're good

21        then.  Let's start with Jones.  Any objection

22        to the admission of staff?  Do you want to go
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1        through everything?

2               MS. CARDONI:  It's your preference,

3        Judge.

4               JUDGE SAINSOT:  I think it's kind of

5        hard to keep track of things after a while.

6        Let's just do Ms. Jones.  I think it's

7        faster.

8                   Any objection to the admission of

9        staff Exhibit 1.0 and all of the attachments

10        and staff Exhibit 6.0, which are the direct

11        and rebuttal testimony of Ms. Jones?

12               MR. RIPPIE:  No objection.

13               JUDGE SAINSOT:  And 6.1, with all the

14        RYs and FYs, and the affidavit -- and 6.1,

15        which is the affidavit.  It's a long day.

16                   Hearing no objection, your motion

17        is granted.

18               MS. CARDONI:  Next I would move for

19        admission into evidence of what has been

20        marked as ICC staff Exhibit 3.0, the direct

21        testimony of Scott Tolsdorf, as well as

22        Schedules 3.01 through 3.04 that were filed
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1        on July 17th, 2012, on E-Docket.

2                   Next for the entry into evidence

3        is what has been marked as ICC staff

4        exhibit -- the rebuttal testimony of Scott

5        Tolsdorf, including his schedules 8.01

6        through 8.02.  We'd like to admit this via

7        affidavit.  That is the affidavit of Scott

8        Tolsdorf, marked as ICC staff Exhibit 8.1

9        filed today, September 25th, 2012.

10               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any objection?

11               MR. RIPPIE:  No objection, your Honor.

12               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Hearing none, your

13        motion is granted, and staff Exhibit 3.0 with

14        the attachments 3.01 through 3.04 are

15        admitted to evidence.  Also 8.0 and 8.01

16        through 8.02.

17               MS. CARDONI:  Next the staff moves for

18        the admission into evidence of what has been

19        marked as staff Exhibit 4.0, the direct

20        testimony of Michael McNally, including his

21        Schedules 4.01 through 4.05, filed on

22        E-Docket on July 17th, 2012.
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1                   The staff also moves for the

2        admission of what has been marked as staff

3        Exhibit 9.0 the rebuttal testimony of Michael

4        McNally.  We'd like to admit these via

5        affidavit.  The affidavit of Michael McNally

6        marked as ICC staff Exhibit 9.1 is filed on

7        September 25th, 2012.

8               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Just for the record, I

9        don't think I admitted Mr. Tolsdorf's

10        affidavit, which is staff Exhibit 8.1.  So

11        that will be admitted.

12                   Now, getting back to Mr. McNally,

13        are there any objections to the admission of

14        Mr. McNally's direct and rebuttal?

15               MR. RIPPIE:  No, your Honor.

16               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Hearing none, your

17        motion is granted, and staff Exhibit 4.0 with

18        Attachments 4.01 through 4.05 as well as 9.0

19        and 9.1 are entered into evidence.

20               MS. CARDONI:  Staff now moves for

21        staff Exhibit 5.0, the direct testimony of

22        Greg Rockrohr, including Attachments A
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1        through F that was filed on July 17th, 2012,

2        on E-Docket.

3                   Staff also moves for the admission

4        into evidence of what has been marked as

5        Exhibit 10.0, the rebuttal testimony of Greg

6        Rockrohr, including Attachment A.  This was

7        filed on September 11th, 2012.  We'd like to

8        admit these documents via affidavit, what has

9        been marked as staff Exhibit 10.1, the

10        affidavit of Greg Rockrohr, filed on

11        September 25th, 2012.

12               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any objection?

13               MR. RIPPIE:  No, your Honor.

14               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Hearing none, your

15        motion is granted.  Mr. Rockrohr's direct and

16        rebuttal testimony will be entered into

17        evidence, and those are staff Exhibit 5.0

18        with Attachments A through F, as well as

19        staff Exhibit 10.0, and 10.0 has an

20        Attachment A.  Am I correct about that?

21               MS. CARDONI:  Yes.

22               JUDGE SAINSOT:  And his affidavit is
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1        staff Exhibit 10.1.

2               MR. SAGONE:  We have one last one,

3        your Honor.  The staff would move for

4        admittance into the record of ICC staff

5        Exhibit 11.0, which is the prefiled rebuttal

6        testimony of staff witness Philip Rukosuev,

7        and that's spelled R-u-k-o-s-u-e-v.

8               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Rukosuev.  Think of

9        Dostoevsky.

10               MR. SAGONE:  I try to do that as

11        little as possible.

12                   That consists of a cover page,

13        seven pages of testimony, and Attachment A.

14        That was filed on E-Docket on September 11th,

15        2012.

16                   The staff would also move for

17        admittance of ICC staff Exhibit 11.1, an

18        affidavit in support of Mr. Rukosuev.

19               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Think of Dostoevsky.

20        Rukosuev.

21               MR. SAGONE:  Mr. Rukosuev's pre-filed

22        testimony.  Staff anticipates that will be
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1        filed on E-Docket this Thursday,

2        September 27th, 2012.

3               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Let's start with his

4        affidavit.  Am I correct that it doesn't

5        have -- it hasn't been signed yet?

6               MR. SAGONE:  That's correct.

7               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Does anybody have an

8        objection to late filing that affidavit?

9               MR. RIPPIE:  No, Judge.

10               JUDGE SAINSOT:  And for the record,

11        apparently he can't sign it because he's in

12        law school.  We tried to talk him out of it.

13               MR. RIPPIE:  That does call into

14        question his competence.

15               JUDGE SAINSOT:  So your motion to

16        delay file that affidavit is granted.  And

17        then you're also moving for admission of

18        staff Exhibit 11.0.  Is there any objection

19        to admission of Rukosuev's rebuttal

20        testimony?

21               MR. SAGONE:  That's correct.

22               MR. RIPPIE:  There is no objection.
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1               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Hearing none, your

2        motion is granted.

3               MR. SAGONE:  Thank you, your Honor.

4               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Do we want to do ComEd

5        next?

6               MS. SODERING:  Can I go?  Ours is

7        short and sweet.

8                   Judy Sodering with CUB.  CUB would

9        move for the admission of CUB Exhibit 1.0,

10        which is the testimony of Ralph C. Smith, and

11        Attachments 1.1, 1.2, and 1.3, as well as the

12        rebuttal testimony of Ralph C. Smith, which

13        is marked as CUB Exhibit 2.0.

14                   His attachment which is labeled as

15        CUB Exhibit 2.1 is a Maryland order to which

16        everyone was referring, which pursuant to our

17        discussion yesterday I would ask your Honors

18        to take administrative notice of that

19        document if you're inclined not to enter it

20        into evidence.

21               JUDGE SAINSOT:  I think as memory

22        serves me, Mr. Smith is -- and correct me if
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1        I'm wrong --

2               MS. SODERING:  He is a lawyer.

3               JUDGE SAINSOT:  But he's citing it for

4        factual things, isn't he?

5               MS. SODERING:  Factual propositions

6        that -- he's just citing how the Commission

7        decided their case.

8               JUDGE SAINSOT:  You're right.  So you

9        don't really need to take administrative

10        notice of that, but I would advise you that

11        we're going to need a copy of that.

12               MS. SODERING:  I've got it.

13               JUDGE SAINSOT:  So you're going to

14        give us a copy?

15               MS. SODERING:  It was marked as

16        Exhibit 2.1, so I've got that in our packet

17        of documents.  I've got actually four extra

18        copies in case anyone needs an extra copy.

19               JUDGE SAINSOT:  We're good on that.

20        So any objection to the admission of

21        Mr. Smith's testimony and his rebuttal

22        testimony?
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1               MR. RIPPIE:  There's no objection to

2        the admission of his narrative testimony, nor

3        to the -- we have no objection to the use of

4        the order as your Honor outlined.

5               MS. SODERING:  Also CUB Exhibit 3.0 is

6        the affidavit of Ralph Smith.

7               MR. RIPPIE:  No objection there

8        either.

9               MS. SODERING:  And we also move for

10        the admission of that document.

11               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Okay.  No objection.

12        Your motion is granted.  CUB Exhibits 1.0,

13        1.1 through 1.3, 2.0 and 3.0 are entered into

14        evidence.

15                   You don't have anything else, do

16        you?

17               MS. SODERING:  No, that's all.  Thank

18        you very much.

19               MR. RIPPIE:  May I proceed?  This

20        afternoon ComEd filed with the clerk's office

21        a document that's been marked ComEd Exhibit

22        22.  It consists of five affidavits
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1        authenticating the submissions of the

2        witnesses for whom there is no

3        cross-examination.

4                   Those are respectively the direct

5        testimony of Ms. Houtsma, Kathryn M. Houtsma,

6        marked as ComEd Exhibit 2.0 revised, filed as

7        an E-Docket on the 24th of -- on 9/24.  The

8        rebuttal testimony of Ms. Houtsma would be

9        ComEd Exhibit 12.0 with one attachment, 12.1,

10        filed on 8/14.

11                   The direct testimony of Michelle

12        Blaise, ComEd Exhibit 6.0 revised, filed on

13        9/24, as well as attachments ComEd

14        Exhibits 6.1, 6.2, and 6.3 filed as of April

15        30th.  There are both public and confidential

16        versions of Exhibits 6.2 and 6.3.

17                   In addition, there is an affidavit

18        of Ms. Blaise filed as part of the compliance

19        filing but pursuant to the subsequent

20        discussion will be designated as ComEd

21        Exhibit 10.16.

22                   Mr. Donavan, by leave of your
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1        Honor's submitted testimony, designated as

2        ComEd 7.0, revised on 9/24 with attachments

3        7.1 revised and 7.2 revised submitted on the

4        same date.  He also submitted an affidavit,

5        which was part of the compliance filing,

6        which looks like it will be designated ComEd

7        Exhibit 10.17.

8                   Mr. Michael Born has direct and

9        rebuttal testimony as part of the compliance

10        filing.  His direct testimony is ComEd

11        Exhibit 8.0 with Attachments 8.1 and 8.2

12        filed on April 30th, and his rebuttal is our

13        Exhibit 17.0 with Attachments 17.1 and 17.2

14        filed on the 14th of August.  In addition,

15        Mr. Born is the maker of the affidavit

16        submitted in the compliance filing as

17        Exhibit 10.6.

18                   And lastly, Mr. Tenorio submitted

19        direct testimony designated as ComEd

20        Exhibit 9.0 on April 30th, accompanied by

21        Attachments ComEd Exhibits 9.1 through 9.9,

22        and he authenticated by affidavit the
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1        compliance filing portions designated

2        10.8 -- Exhibits 10.8 through 10.13.  And

3        10.13 has both a public and a confidential

4        and proprietary version.

5                   I am going to beg your indulgence,

6        your Honor.  I've got two of those -- I

7        believe I have two of those numbers wrong.

8        The affidavit of Blaise is 10.15, not 16, and

9        the affidavit of Donovan is 10.16, not 17.  I

10        put a blank number.  I apologize.

11               JUDGE SAINSOT:  No problem.  Is there

12        anybody -- so this is all -- when you're

13        going through that, this is all what is

14        contained in ComEd Exhibit 22?

15               MR. RIPPIE:  No, your Honor.  22 are

16        the five affidavits.  We filed them as a

17        group exhibit, authenticating the narrative

18        testimonies and attachments of Houtsma,

19        Blaise, Donovan, Born, and Tenorio.  The

20        affidavits authenticating the compliance

21        filings were already made with the compliance

22        filings.
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1               JUDGE KIMBREL:  What about Houtsma

2        direct, 2.5?

3               MR. RIPPIE:  I thought I mentioned

4        that, and I apologize if I didn't.  The 2.0

5        revised filed on the 24th.

6                   And by the way, the revisions to

7        most of those directs are also pursuant to

8        your Honors' motion.  Many of those people

9        referred to the testimony of witness Novy.

10        And when it became the testimony of witness

11        Donovan instead of witness Novy, we had to

12        correct them.

13               JUDGE SAINSOT:  That would look kind

14        of odd.  So you're moving for the admission

15        of ComEd 22?

16               MR. RIPPIE:  Of Exhibit 22, as well as

17        Exhibit 2.0 -- do you need me to repeat all

18        of those exhibits identified?

19               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Oh, no, no, no.  So

20        you just went through the list?

21               MR. RIPPIE:  Yes.  Why don't I break

22        it into two motions, your Honor.
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1                   I move for the admission of

2        Exhibit 22, together with the narrative

3        testimonies and attachments thereto that I

4        identified for witnesses Houtsma, Blaise,

5        Donovan, Born, and Tenorio.

6               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any objection?  And I

7        will note for the record it's after 5:00.

8                   Your motion is granted.

9               MR. RIPPIE:  And then the other half

10        would be for the admission of the portions of

11        the compliance filings submitted by Mr. Born.

12        That would be 10.6 for the portions submitted

13        and authenticated by Mr. Tenorio, that would

14        be 10.08 through 10.13, where 10.13 has both

15        a public and a confidential, and for

16        affidavits designated the correct numbers,

17        10.15 and 10.16.

18               JUDGE SAINSOT:  What are 10.15 and

19        10.16?

20               MR. RIPPIE:  That would be the

21        affidavits of Ms. Blaise and Mr. Donovan in

22        the second compliance filing -- the second
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1        batch of compliance filed on the 19th of

2        June.

3               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any objection to

4        admission of all of these affidavits?

5                   Hearing none, your motion is

6        granted, and ComEd Exhibits 10.6, 10.8

7        through 10.13, 10.15, through 10.16 are

8        entered into evidence.

9               MR. RIPPIE:  Thank you, your Honor.

10        There's one more matter, but it's probably

11        best left until after the Attorney General

12        offers her evidence.

13               MS. LUSSON:  Your Honor, I'd move for

14        the admission of AG AARP Exhibit 1.0, which

15        is the direct testimony of Michael L. Brosch,

16        as well as Attachments 1.1 through 1.9.

17                   And I would note for the record

18        that Attachments 1.7 and 1.8 are excerpts

19        from Mr. Brosch's testimony from Docket

20        Number 11-0721.  And so the extent they've

21        been attached as attachments, I'm not sure if

22        you'd like me to move for administrative
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1        notice of those particular exhibits.

2               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Refresh my

3        recollection as to what he was testifying

4        about and what that testimony proves.

5               MS. LUSSON:  As I recall, your Honor,

6        I think it was preserving the -- his

7        opinions, what he presented as testimony on

8        those two issues in the 11-0721 case, and

9        indicating that his position is the same in

10        this docket in terms of average rate base and

11        how reconciliation interests -- to the extent

12        it would be raised by the company.

13               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any objection?

14               MR. RIPPIE:  We have no objection to

15        admitting them normally, since it's the same

16        witness and he -- it's our view that that's

17        appropriate and that no extraordinary notice

18        or other procedure is required in that

19        particular case.

20               MS. LUSSON:  And then I would also

21        move for the admission of rebuttal

22        Exhibit 3.0, which is the rebuttal



L.A. COURT REPORTERS, LLC (312) 419-9292

225

1        testimony -- AG AARP Exhibit 3.0, which is

2        the rebuttal testimony of Michael L Brosch,

3        along with attachment 3.1 and Mr. Brosch's

4        affidavit, which is AG AARP Exhibit 3.2.

5               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any objection?

6               MR. RIPPIE:  No, your Honor.  None.

7               MS. LUSSON:  I would also move for the

8        admission --

9               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Hold on.  Especially

10        after 5:00 I might forget.  That would be

11        bad.

12                   Just for the record, Mr. Brosch

13        doesn't -- shouldn't be attaching previous

14        testimony.  I think in this case,

15        ComEd -- he's just attaching previous

16        testimony to say if this is what I said

17        before, then whatever.  But really he's not

18        really subject to cross-examination about the

19        previous testimony.  I don't want to make a

20        big deal about it, so we'll let it go.  But

21        let's have the rules of evidence apply a

22        little more strictly next time.
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1                   Your motion is granted.  AG AARP,

2        Exhibits 1.0 and 1.1 through 1.9 are entered

3        into evidence, as well as 3.0 and 3.1 and

4        3.2.

5               MS. LUSSON:  Thank you, your Honor.  I

6        would also move for the admission of AG AARP

7        Exhibit 2.0, which is the direct testimony of

8        David J Effron -- I think it's J.  Yes, J.

9        And as well as attached Exhibit 2.1.

10                   In addition, I would move for the

11        admission of AG AARP Exhibit 4.0, which is

12        the rebuttal testimony of David J. Effron, as

13        well as his attachment 4.1, 4.2, and

14        Mr. Effron's affidavit, which is AG AARP

15        Exhibit 4.3.

16               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Isn't Mr. Effron the

17        one who had to incorporate his testimony from

18        11-0721, or was that Mr. Brosch?

19               MS. LUSSON:  That was Mr. Brosch.

20               JUDGE SAINSOT:  So Mr. Effron is

21        clean?

22               MS. LUSSON:  I'm sorry?
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1               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Mr. Effron is clean in

2        that respect?

3               MS. LUSSON:  Yes, he's very clean.

4               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any objection to

5        Mr. Effron's testimony being admitted?

6               MR. RIPPIE:  No, your Honor.

7               JUDGE SAINSOT:  That being the case,

8        your motion is granted, and AG AARP

9        Exhibits 2.0, 2.1, 4.1, and 4.1 through 4.3

10        are admitted into evidence.

11               MS. LUSSON:  Your Honor, finally I

12        would move for -- and I'm not sure if this is

13        consistent or inconsistent with your prior

14        rulings, but just in case just to cover my

15        bases, I would ask that you take

16        administrative notice if need be for the

17        Commission's order in ICC Docket 12-0001,

18        which is the AMRON formula rate order that

19        was recently issued.

20               JUDGE SAINSOT:  I don't think we need

21        to -- as long as you're proofing it for what

22        the Commission ruled and not a proof of fact,
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1        fine.  If you're using it for proof of fact,

2        no.  What does -- you're looking -- I'm not

3        getting any response.

4               MS. LUSSON:  Oh, okay.  For purposes

5        of this case, I would refer to any

6        position -- or any decisions that the

7        Commission had made in 12-0001, as well as

8        any representation as to what evidence had

9        been presented, for example, by a staff

10        witness in that case, at least as stated in

11        the order.

12               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Well, just stay away

13        from proof of fact.  I think you're fine if

14        you cite it, but I really don't want to be in

15        a situation where it's saying you can't do

16        that on a post trial level.  So you don't

17        have to take administrative notice of it as

18        long as you're using it for what the

19        Commission ruled and not -- this way it is

20        kind of evidence.

21                   And we'll note for the record that

22        12-0001 is the AMRON case.  It's kind of an
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1        easy docket number to remember.

2               MR. RIPPIE:  Your Honor, I believe

3        that only leaves one open matter, as has been

4        previously raised with your Honors in the

5        rather lengthy status hearing where we

6        discussed schedules.

7                   The Commission will be at some

8        time prior to the deadline for this case

9        entering an order on rehearing in the

10        original formula case, and it would be

11        ComEd's intention to submit a

12        revised -- what's called an updated

13        compliance filing that would track the

14        attachments to Mr. Fruehe's testimony, and

15        would pass through any changes that the

16        Commission orders on rehearing to the formula

17        rate or to the formula rate calculations that

18        must also govern this case.

19                   It would be our suggestion that

20        your Honors leave the record open, and the

21        company would submit that compliance filing

22        as a late filed exhibit, designated 23, along
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1        with an appropriate affidavit.  We understand

2        that parties need time to look at that, but

3        given that it is a mathematical exhibit, we

4        think that would both be the most efficient

5        way to handle it.

6                   And frankly, in view of the dates

7        as your Honor has observed with the status

8        hearing, it's probably the only way you can

9        handle it to comply with the law.

10               JUDGE SAINSOT:  I take it this has to

11        do with whatever adjustment would be

12        necessary regarding a pension aspect

13        regarding whatever the Commission does?

14               MR. RIPPIE:  Or the interest rate or

15        the average rate base, depending upon

16        anything that is changed on rehearing that is

17        going to flow through into this case.

18               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Yeah, that's true.

19        Because this -- all the other issues affect

20        this case.

21               MR. RIPPIE:  There is a reconciliation

22        in this case, so the interest rate would have
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1        some affect, correct.  If the Commission on

2        one hearing alters the substantive

3        decision -- not just the rationale, but

4        altered the decision on any of those issues,

5        there would be a need to reflect that in the

6        rates set in this docket as well.

7               JUDGE SAINSOT:  So you're asking for

8        leave to file a late filed exhibit

9        after -- within a reasonable period of time

10        after the Commission issues a final order?

11               MR. RIPPIE:  Yes, your Honor.  I'm

12        prepared to say that the company believes

13        that they could do that within one week.

14        They have asked me to represent to you that

15        that is a belief held with some conviction,

16        but asked me not to promise with absolute

17        certainty that it won't slip to eight days.

18               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Any objection?

19               MS. LUSSON:  No, your Honor.

20               MS. CARDONI:  None from the staff.

21               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Your motion is

22        granted.  I think that's the best we can do
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1        at this point.

2               MR. RIPPIE:  Thank you very much.

3               JUDGE SAINSOT:  Anything else?  Okay.

4        Well, a it's little bit after 5:00.  Not too

5        bad.  Thanks, everybody.  Have a nice

6        evening.
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